
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

July 06, 2020 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  July 06, 2020 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

July 06, 2020 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 4. Public Hearings 

A. South Mills Landing 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report 

B. Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

C. COVID-19 Small Business and Non-Profit Relief Grant Program 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  July 06, 2020 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

D. Camden County Library Financing 

E. Camden County School Bond Referendum 

F. School Site Preparation 

ITEM 6. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tourism Development Authority 

B. NCACC Conference Delegate 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - May 28, 2020 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2020 

C. School Budget Amendments 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

E. Tax Collection Report 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

G. Refunds Over $100.00 

H. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

I. Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 

J. Surplus Property - Parks & Recreation 

ITEM 8. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 9. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   South Mills Landing 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Reset SML Public Hearing

 (DOCX) 

Cover Letter (PDF) 

Staff Findings (PDF) 

SouthMillsLanding4SheetsMasterPlan (PDF) 

Draft Terms  Conditions with Schedules2 (PDF) 

TRCinput (PDF) 

Proposed Development Agreement (PDF) 

1 MP Development Impact Statement updated 2-20-20 

- Copy (PDF) 

1a MP TIA Exec Summary - Copy (PDF) 

2 MP Compatibility with Surrounding Area - Copy

 (PDF) 

3 MP CONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED POLICY 

GUIDANCE - Copy (PDF) 

5a Stormwater comments - Copy (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary, recommendation and supporting documentation attached. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 4



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   July 6, 2020 

 

Attachments:   Preliminary Plan/Staff Findings/TRC inputs/Draft Terms and 

Conditions/Development Agreement/Development Impact Statement 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title: Master Plan/Preliminary Plat for South Mills Landing Planned Development 

Major Subdivision 

 

Summary: 

 

Last month the Board of Commissioners received the above-named documents for this project and set a 

public hearing for July 6, 2020 anticipating a recommendation from the Planning Board from its June 

17, 2020 meeting where the project was discussed and considered. 

 

The Planning Board voted to delay its recommendation until additional information could be provided 

based on public and member comments received at the meeting.   

 

The formal public hearing was not advertised due to the Planning Board action.   

 

Therefore, the July 6th public hearing needs to be rescheduled to a date after the July Planning Board 

meeting.   

 

Recommendation: 

 

To reschedule the Public Hearing for the Master Plan/Preliminary Plat for South Mills  

Landing Planned Development Major Subdivision to August 3, 2020. 

4.A.A

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

R
es

et
 S

M
L

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
  (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.B

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
ve

r 
L

et
te

r 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.B

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
ve

r 
L

et
te

r 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.B

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
ve

r 
L

et
te

r 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Page 1 of 11 

 

  

  

  UDO 2020-01-36 

FINDINGS 

South Mills Landing  

Planned Development 

 

  

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

File Reference:  UDO 2020-01-36 

Project Name; South Mills Landing 

PIN:     01-7989-00-43-1290,  

    01-7988-01-49-2837 

                                             
Applicant:   South Mills Landing 

LLC 

                                                Reese Smith, Sr. 

Address:   P.O. Box 9636 

                                    Chesapeake, VA  

 Phone:   (757)  499-4772 

 Email:  reesesr@reesesmithassociates.com 

 

Agent for Applicant:    Bissell Professional Group  

      Mark Bissell 

                                        

Address:            3512 N. Croatan Hwy 

                           Kitty Hawk, NC 27949   

Phone:      (252) 261-3266 

Email:   mark@bissellprofessionalgroup.com   

Current Owner of Record:  Same as applicant 

 

Meeting Dates: 

Neighborhood Meeting:  January 29, 2020    

Technical Review:   February 11, 2020 

Planning Board:       March 18, 2020 

  Application Received: 1/30/2020 

By:  David Parks, Permit Officer 

Application Fee paid:  $29,000 Check #1672 

Stormwater Review Fee:  $6000 Check #1668 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Land Use Application  

B. Master Plan South Mills Landing PD 

C. Developmental Impact Statement 

D. Traffic Impact Analysis 

E. Proposed Development Agreement 

F. Technical Review Committee inputs. 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUEST:  Master Plan/Preliminary Plat South Mills Landing Planned Development for 580 (single 

and multifamily) units with commercial and recreational areas.

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 2 of 11 

 

 

Vicinity Map: 

 

 

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 3 of 11 

 

Core Village Lines 

 

  

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 4 of 11 

 

Zoning Map 

 

  

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 5 of 11 

 

Flood Zone Map 

 
  

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 6 of 11 

 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

  

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 7 of 11 

 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

  

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 8 of 11 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

 

Street Address:    Parcels located off Main Street and Horseshoe Road  

Location Description:    South Mills Township 

 

 

SITE DATA 

 

Lot size:   Approximately 185 acres.    

 

Flood Zone:   Zone AE/X (Majority in AE Flood Zone)  

 

Zoning District(s):  Base Zoning;   Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

 

Adjacent property uses:       Residential/Agriculture/Woodland 

 

Streets:                                   Shall be dedicated to public under control of NCDOT. 

 

Street name:                          See Master Plan (Street Names approved by Central Communications) 

 

Open Space:                          Provided:  Approximately 65 acres 

 

Landscaping:                         Landscaping Plan provided   

 

Buffering:                              Per Article 151.5.5.4, a 50’ landscaped vegetative buffer required along  

    all property lines that abut agricultural uses. 

 

Recreational Land:             383 Single Family Lots X 1452sf = 12.76 acres 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 

 

Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:    

 

Distance & description of nearest outfall:   Outfall from North Tract is approximately 1800 feet.  

Outfall from South Tact is adjacent to property (wetlands).    

 

 

TECHNICAL REVIEW STAFF (SKETCH PLAN) COMMENTS 

 

1. South Mills Water Association.  No written response. 

2. Albemarle Regional Health Department.  N/A 

3. South Camden Water & Sewer District:  Approved. See attached.  

4. South Mills Fire Department.   Disapproved.  See attached   

5. Postmaster Elizabeth City.    No response. Did not attend TRC meeting. 

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 9 of 11 

 

6. Army Corps of Engineer.     There was a proposed canoe launch located on the North Tract 

adjacent to the canal, however was removed based on attached email from Army Corps. 

7. Superintendent Camden County Schools.  Approved with comments.  See attached. 

8. Superintendent/Transportation Director of Schools. Approved with following comment. 

9. Sheriff’s Office.    Disapproved.  See attached. 

10. Camden Soil & Water Conservationist.    Reviewed with comments/conditions.  See attached. 

11. NCDOT.   No response.   

12. Parks & Recreation.  No response. 

13. Mediacom.    No response.   

14. Albemarle EMC.   No response. 

15. Century Link.   No response.    

16. Pasquotank EMS.   Street names approved. 

 

 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY    

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:   

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 

 CAMA Plan future land use maps has land identified as a Planned Unit Development. 

 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

  

Comprehensive Plan has North Tract designated as Village Mixed Use and South Tract as Village 

Residential (VR).   Location of land is within the Core Village of South Mills. 

 

   

PLANS CONSISTENCY – cont. 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

There will be two accesses with a third maintenance access for the North Tract.  There will be two 

accesses off Main Street for the South Tract.   

 

  

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 10 of 11 

 

 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXCEED PUBLIC FACILITIES: 

 
 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

Endangering the public health and safety? 

 

Based on TRC input from Sherriff and SM Fire, 

project could have impact on public safety 

based on manning and infrastructure concerns.    

 

 

 

Injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property.    

 

Without any evidence to the contrary - staffs 

opinion is that application does not appear to 

injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property. 

 

Harmony with the area in which it is located. 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 

Maps has land designated as Village Residential 

and Village Mixed Use.  CAMA Future Land 

use Maps has land designated as Planned Unit 

Development (PUD). 

 

 

 

 

Schools:  Proposed development will generate 

301 students after build out (.67 per SFD X 383 

= 256.6) & (.23 MFU X 197 units = 45.3).  High 

School over capacity.   (See breakdown next 

page.) 

 

Fire and rescue:    Denied based on lack of 

supporting infrastructure. 

 

Law Enforcement:  Denied.  

Manning/equipment.

 

 

 

 

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



Page 11 of 11 

 

 

Student Generation Rates (Single Family Dwelling = .67 students)  (Other = .23 students) 

 

                                                      Single Family                                 

 

Grandy Primary (.29)                383 lots X .29 = 111                       

Grandy Intermediate (.18)        383 lots X .18 =  68.9                     

Camden Middle (.07)                 383 lots X .07 =  26.8 

Camden High School (.13)        383 lots X .13 =  49.7        

 

                                                   Total students:  256.4 

 

                                                     Other (Townhomes) 

 

Grandy Primary (.08)                197 units X .08 = 15.7 

Grandy Intermediate (.08)        197 units X .08 = 15.7 

Camden Middle (.04)                 197 units X .04 =  8 

Camden High School (.03)        197 units X .03 =  6 

 

                                                  Total students:      45.4 

 

                    Overall total students generated:  301.8 (over the life of the project.) 

 

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION:     
 

- Portion of Union Camp Road within the development from Camelia Drive to eastern property line 

shall be paved to NCDOT standards. 

- Extend Phasing Schedule out 5 years. 

- Fee in lieu of acreage for public park can be utilized for providing landscaping along Main Street  

- Need to interconnect (sidewalk, crosswalk) North and South Tracts 

- Provide sidewalk along Main Street for South Tract with trees. 

- Landscaping around ponds (prevents alligator weed and stagnant water) 

- Terms and Conditions reflect providing up to 50,000 sf of commercial yet Master Plan shows 

35,000 sf? 

-  

4.A.C

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.D

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

o
u

th
M

ill
sL

an
d

in
g

4S
h

ee
ts

M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.D

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

o
u

th
M

ill
sL

an
d

in
g

4S
h

ee
ts

M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.D

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

o
u

th
M

ill
sL

an
d

in
g

4S
h

ee
ts

M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.D

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

o
u

th
M

ill
sL

an
d

in
g

4S
h

ee
ts

M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



South Mills Landing PD - Draft Terms and Conditions 

Statement of Planning Objectives: To build a community that has a 
creative design, providing a mix of residential uses in close proximity to 
one another, while at the same time providing an efficient use of open 
space that promotes an active lifestyle and a strong sense of community. 
Commercial development is also proposed to serve both the needs of the 
residents of this development and of the adjacent South Mills community. 

a. The Phasing Plan attached to this terms and conditions document and 
incorporated herein by reference as Schedule A (attached) shall be 
adhered to except that the Developer may determine the sequence in 
which phases are developed. The Developer shall provide an annual 
report updating the Phasing Plan for the development. 

b. Development on the Property shall be connected to Camden County's 
permitted and approved central wastewater treatment and disposal 
system, and to the South Mills Water Association water system. Fire 
protection shall be provided in accordance with the UDO Standards. 

c. The density/intensity standards, dimensional standards and 
development standards for development of the Property shall be in 
accordance with the Master Plan and Schedule B (attached), 
subject to the degree of flexibility provided in these conditions. 

d. Community form and design for development of the Property shall 
conform generally to the sample building elevations attached in 
Appendix A. Variations may be provided and shall be permitted in 
colors, materials, and architectural detailing that are compatible with 
the design concept. 

e. Transportation: The main subdivision entrance to the North tract will 
be connected to Horseshoe Road, which will be designed and 
improved in accordance with recommendations made in the Traffic 
Impact Analysis (TIA) for this development as approved by NCDOT. 
The entrance to the South tract from Main Street (US 17 Business) 
will be also be designed and improved in accordance with 
recommendations made in the TIA as approved by NCDOT. Internal 
roads shall be designed in accordance with North Carolina 
Department of Transportation ("NCDOT") standards and shall be 
approved by NCDOT prior to construction. Roadways shall be laid 
out generally as shown on the Master Plan and in accordance with 
the typical sections shown on the Master Plan drawings. 

f. Potable Water: Water shall be supplied by South Mills Water 
Association via connections with the existing water distribution 
system. Individual lots and dwellings shall be metered. The 
Developer shall model the water system to demonstrate adequate 

PPAB 5368575v2 

4.A.E

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



water flow and pressure for fighting fires while meeting the maximum 

day domestic demand. 

g. Wastewater: A wastewater collection system will be constructed by 
the Developer and then dedicated to and managed by Camden 
County. 

h. Stormwater: 

i. On-site stormwater will be managed by construction a series 
of stormwater management ponds that will be interconnected 
and will retain and slow-release stormwater to existing 
drainage outlets both directly and indirectly. 

In addition to modeling and retaining stormwater to the UDO 
and Stormwater Manual standard for the 10-year developed 
condition and runoff, stormwater will be modeled for the 100-
year storm event and property line berms constructed as 
necessary to manage the 100-year storm without adversely 
impacting neighboring properties. 

Stormwater will be conveyed to on-site retention ponds 
through a combination of curbs with inlets, stormwater pipes 
and open, vegetated swales. 

The Improvements set forth in this section shall be maintained 
by the Developer, or a management association created by 
the Developer. 

Improvements will be generally as shown on sheet _ of 
the Master Plan drawings 

Up to 50,000 square feet of commercial development will be constructed 
in the area set aside for commercial development on the Master Plan. 
Water and sewer lines will be stubbed to the commercial area property 
line in Phase 1 of the development. 

Perimeter compatibility shall be addressed as follows: 

i. 50 foot vegetated buffers shall be provided to existing 
residential development along areas adjacent properties. 

ii. Commercial development is located away from 
existing development and adjacent to US 17 Bypass.. 

iii. Architectural Features: Building placement, 
design features, orientation and entryways 
promote compatibility with adjacent properties. 

k. Environmental Protection and Monitoring: Wetlands subject to the 
jurisdiction of the US Army Corps of Engineers have been delineated 
and confirmed by the Corps of Engineers. The Association documents 
(Declaration) will include provisions that prohibit the filling of wetlands 
and prohibit the clearing of any vegetated buffer areas other than 
incidental tree cutting and vegetation removal, and for stormwater 
management. 

PPAB 5368575v2 

4.A.E

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



The Association, either itself or via a management entity, will assume 
responsibility for ongoing operation and maintenance of all stormwater 
management facilities in accordance with the Camden County UDO 
requirements and all NCDEQ permit requirements. The Association 
dues will be structured in a way that funds are provided for the upkeep 
of these facilities, as well as a contribution to off-site ditch maintenance. 

I. Developer general responsibilities: 

The developer is responsible to design and construct or install the 
required and proposed on site public utilities in compliance with 
applicable county, state and federal regulations. 

The developer shall dedicate to the public the right-of-way and 
easements necessary to construct or install the required and 
proposed on site public facilities in compliance with applicable county, 
state and federal regulations. 

PPAB 5368575v2 

4.A.E

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Schedule A 

PHASING SCHEDULE 

PHASE AREA  

(AC.) 

OPEN SPACE 

(AC.) 

UNITS 

Residential Development 

DEVELOPMENT EST. RECORDING OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 

INTENSITY (D.U/A.C) YEAR 

1 42.5 12.5 129 3.04 2021 Main Entrance, Roundabout, Portion of Multi-use Path, Mail 

Kiosk; Main drainage outlet 

2 42.6 7.5 178 4.18 2022 Clubhouse; Pedestrian Connesctivity 

3 39.2 12 134 3.42 2023 Additional Mail Kiosk, Canoe Launch; Continue M.U.P. 

4 42.5 15.5 99 2.33 2024 

5 18.2 4 41 2.25 2025 

TOTAL 185 51.5 580 3.14   
 
        

Commercial Development 

PHASE AREA OPEN SPACE COMM. MAXIMUM COMM. EST. CONST. 

  (AC.) (AC.) S.F. AREA RATIO YEAR 

A 1 0.2 6852 0.2 2024 

B 1.25 0.2 7000 0.2 2025 

C 1 0.1 7139 0.2 2027 

D 1.25 0.1 6800 0.2 2029 

E 1 0.2 6813 0.2 2031 

4.A.E

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Schedule B 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS & SETBACKS 

Style: 

  Commercial Single-Family Lot Townhome Lot 

Min. Lot Size: N/A 6500 SF 1800 SF 

Typ. Lot Size: N/A 7000-12000 SF 1800-2400 SF 

Min. Lot Width: N/A 40' 20' 

Typ. Lot Width: N/A 60' 20'-25' 

Front Setback: 10' (parking)/50' (bldg.) 10' 0 

Side Setback: 10' (parking) 20' 0 

Corner Side Setback: 10' (parking) 15' 0 

Max. Front Setback: N/A 75' 40' 

Max. Height: 35' 35' 35' 

Max. Bldg. Size: 20,000 SF 4,800 SF 22,000 SF 

Max. Lot Coverage: 90% 60% 100% 

Max. Comm. Floor Area Ratio: 0.40 N/A N/A 
 

Min. Set-back to Adj. 50' 50' 50' 

Residential Dev. 

4.A.E

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s2
  (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.F

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

R
C

in
p

u
t 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



 
 

 
 
 
 

OUTLINE OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

By and Between South Mills Landing, LLC and County of Camden, NC 
 

February 21, 2020 
 
 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 
 

  
 
 

Table of Contents                                                                             page 
 
 
  
 
 

• Legal Description of the property covered by the Agreement                                     2 
o Exhibit “A” – Boundary Surveys                                                                                              3-5 

 
• The Duration of the Agreement                                                                                                            6 

 
• Detailed Description of the Development Plan                                                                                  7 

o Exhibit ”B”- Master Plan                                                                                                           8-18 
o Exhibit “C”- Preliminary Plat                                                                                                  19-40 
o Exhibit “D”- Typical Building Elevations                                                                               41-44                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

 
• Dedication of  Land for Public Use                                                                                                       34 
 

• Public Facilities                                                                                                                                         32 
 

• List of Required Permits                                                                                                                          35 
 

• Conditions to be incorporated into the Agreement                                                                           36 
 

• Development Schedule                                                                                                                            43 
 

• Amendments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 
 

 
 
 
 

OUTLINE OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
By and Between South Mills Landing, LLC and County of Camden, NC 

 
February 21, 2020 

 
 

BACKGROUND 

1. South Mills Landing, LLC is the owner of 3 tracts of land as follows:  The North Tract 
consisting of 124.83 acres located off of Horseshoe Road, the South Tract consisting of 
60.1 acres located off of Maple Street, and an undeveloped tract adjacent to the South 
Tract consisting of 44.39 acres, referred to as the Environment Tract. Plats of these 
properties are attached as Exhibit A. 

 

2. The property was rezoned to PUD (Planned Unit Development) in 2004, now PD under 
the current UDO.  A concept plan for a Planned Unit Development of 581 units was 
reviewed and approved administratively in 2019, and a Master Plan was submitted in 
January, 2020 for a 580 unit Planned Development,  which is in substantiated 
conformance with the approved Concept Plan.  A preliminary plat for the 580 units has 
now also been submitted. 
 

3. The development is shown on the Master Plan and the Preliminary Plat, now referred to 
as the “Plan”.  The Plan consists of the Master Plan prepared by Bissell Professional 
Group and dated January 29, 2020, attached as Exhibit B, and the Preliminary Plat also 
prepared by Bissell Professional Group and dated February 21, 2020, attached as Exhibit 
C.  Typical building elevations including a preliminary building plan and swimming pool 
for the proposed club house and recreation facility are included as Exhibit D.  These 
plans and elevations show the concept but are subject change during actual design 
based on market conditions. 
 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4. This Outline of Development Agreement is intended to supplement the Development 
Application for South Mills Landing that was submitted by South Mills Landing, LLC to 
Camden County dated January 30, 2020. 

 
 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 

Legal Description of the Property 

 

The Property that is the subject of the Agreement consists of 3 tracts totaling 233.68 acres, as follows: 

 

The North Tract located off of Horseshoe Road, PIN #017989004312900000 with an acreage of 
124.83 acres per plat, attached as Exhibit “A”. 

The South Tract located off Main Street, PIN #017988014928370000 consisting of 60.1 acres per 
plat, also attached as Exhibit “A”.   

The third undeveloped, or environmental tract located adjacent to the South Tract, PIN 
#017988004738040000 consisting of 48.75 acres per plat, also attached as Exhibit “A”. (The 
third tract is not part of the PD-zoned property, but is included in what is being offered as part 
of this Development Agreement).  

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 

Boundary Surveys 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Duration of the Agreement 

 

The duration of this Development Agreement shall be a period of ten (10) years. 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Description of Development Plan 

 

The development is shown on the Master Plan and the Preliminary Plat, now referred to as the 
“Plan”.  The Plan consists of the Master Plan prepared by Bissell Professional Group and dated 
January 29, 2020, attached as Exhibit B, and the Preliminary Plat also prepared by Bissell 
Professional Group and dated February 21, 2020, attached as Exhibit C.  Typical building 
elevations including a preliminary building plan and swimming pool for the proposed club 
house and recreation facility are included as Exhibit D.  These plans and elevations show the 
concept but are subject change during actual design based on market conditions. 

These elevations are similar to, but do not represent exactly, the actual homes that will be 
constructed within South Mills Landing.  The developer reserves the right to modify the final 
building plans to fit builder preferences and market conditions. 

The development is summarized in the following table: 

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY 

TRACT 
AREA 
(AC.) 

S.F. 
LOTS 

LOT SIZE 
RANGE 

M.F. 
UNITS 

TOTAL 
UNITS 

OPEN SPACE 
(AC.) 

NORTH 124.83 285 6,500-15,978 50 335 40.64 
SOUTH 60.10 98 6,500-11,783 147 245 24.19 

UNDEVELOPED 48.75 0 N/A 0 0 48.75 
TOTAL 233.68 383 6,500-15,978 197 580 113.58 

 

 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “B” 
Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “C” 
Preliminary Plat 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “D” 
Typical Building Elevations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Dedication of Land for Public Use 
 

 

South Mills Landing proposes to dedicate the third tract (PIN 
#017988004738040000) consisting of approximately 48.75 acres per plat, also 
known as the undeveloped, environmental tract, for public use. 

 

Possible improvements to the tract are discussed in the following section entitled 
“Public Facilities”. 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Public Facilities 

 

Subject to the approval of the NC Department of Environmental Quality, a new public waste 
water collection system including gravity lines, lift stations and force mains will be constructed 
to serve South Mills Landing and will connect to the County wastewater disposal system.  All 
gravity sewer mains, force mains, pump stations and appurtenances will be designed, 
permitted and constructed at the developer’s sole expense and then turned over to Camden 
County for ownership and maintenance. 

 

The developer will also install a new water main under the Dismal Swamp Canal from Mullen 
Street on the East side of the canal for the purpose of looping and providing redundancy to the 
public water supply system that serves South Mills, and to provide for improved fire flow to 
enhance the fire fighting ability of the South Mills Volunteer Fire Department. 

 

Third, the developer will  commit funds in the amount of $70,000 to be used in one of the 
following ways for Public Facilities:  

1. Construction of boardwalks, nature overlooks and parking facilities within the 48.75 acre 
tract of land previously referred to as the undeveloped, Environmental Tract, offered for 
dedication for public use in the previous section of this Agreement, or 

2. Streetscape improvements along Main Street through the main business corridor of 
South Mills including sidewalks, street lights, landscape planting, and related 
improvements in general conformance with the Concept Plan prepared by Bissell 
Professional Group and attached hereto. 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



List of Required Permits 

 

The following local permits and approvals are necessary for the development of South Mills 
Landing.  A status of each (secured, in process, or not yet secured) is provided below: 

 

Permit       Status 

Zoning                                                                   Secured 

Concept Plan     Secured 

Master Plan                  In Process 

Preliminary Plant                                                 In Process 

SMWA Water System Approval                        Capacity Agreement Secured; plan approval not yet 
                                                                                     Secured 
 
County Sewer System Review   Not yet secured 

County Stormwater Approval   In Process 

Commercial Site Plan Approval  Not yet secured 

Pre-Construction Approval   Not yet secured 

Final Plat Approval    Not yet secured 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Conditions to be Incorporated into the Agreement 

 

Obligations of South Mills Landing, LLC (the Developer): 

 

1. Install a wastewater collection system as approved by Camden County and the NC 
Department of Environmental Quality; pay for all normal costs associated with the 
preparation of the Engineering Plans, DWR permitting, and the collection system 
construction and dedicaton to Camden County.  Upon completion and certification, the 
Developer will deed the wastewater collection system to Camden County. 

 
2. Purchase capacity for 580 sewer connections in the Camden County Wastewater System, to 

serve phases 1 through 5 and pay a $7,400 (seven thousand, four hundred dollar) System 
Development Fee for each of the 580 County Sewer Connections as follows: 

 
a. Reserve Payment- 25% of $7,400 or $1,850 per connection to be paid upon approval of 

Construction Drawings for each development phase. 
 
b. Intermediate Payment- 25% x $7,400, or $1,850 per connection as a condition of recording 

the Final Plat for each phase. 
 
c. Residual Payment- 50% of $7,400 or $3,700 per connection to be paid at the request 

for a building permit for each lot or unit. 
 

3. Install a water main under the Dismal Swamp Canal, as approved by the South Mills 
Water Association and the NC Public Water Supply Section, and upon completion and 
certification, dedicate the water main for public use. 
 

4. Improve off-site drainageways downstream of the development’s stormwater drainage 
outlets by clearing and snagging as necessary to remove obstructions to flow, subject to 
gaining the right of access to make these improvements. 
 

5. Adhere to conditions of the Master Plan and Preliminary Plat approvals as approved by the 
Camden County Board of Commissioners. 
 
 

 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 

 

Obligations of Camden County: 

 
1. Utilize funds provided by South Mills Landing, LLC for the construction of community 

improvements as described in the Public Facilities section of this Agreement. 
 
 

2. Make sewer taps available upon the payment of System Development Fees by the 
Developer in accordance with the schedule outlined above to enable the development 
of the property to be completed in general conformance with the phasing schedule 
provided and approved with the Master Plan and the Preliminary Plat. 

 

3. Furnish a supply of County water to South Mills Water Association in such amounts as 
may be required for the South Mills Water Association to commit water taps to South 
Mills Landing in accordance with the approved phasing schedule incorporated into this 
Agreement. 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Development Schedule 

 

The following is the Developer’s proposed schedule for completing the Development that is the 
subject of this Agreement: 

 

Activity    Proposed Schedule 

Permitting    May 2020 – July 2020 

Construction of Phase 1  Commence August 2020 (subject to permitting) 

Record Phase 1   2021 

Record Phase 2   2022 

Record Phases 3              2023 

Record Phase 4                                       2024 

Record Phase 5                                       2025 

 

A tabulation of the phasing, showing the numbers of units for each phase is included on the 
Plan and is attached on the following page as Exhibit “?????” 

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.G

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



PHASING SCHEDULE

Residential Development

APPROX.

PHASE AREA OPEN SPACE UNITS DEVELOPMENT EST. RECORDING OTHER IMPROVEMENTS

(AC.) (AC.) INTENSITY (D.U/A.C) YEAR

1 42.5 13.9 129 3.04 2021 Main Entrance, Roundabout, Portion of Multi-use Path,

     Mail Kiosk; Main drainage outlet

2 45.1 17.2 178 4.18 2022 Clubhouse; Pedestrian Connectivity

3 40.5 13.7 134 3.42 2023   Additional Mail Kiosk, Canoe Launch; Continue M.U.P.

4 42.5 15.7 99 2.33 2024 Dog Park

5 14.3 4.1 41 2.25 2025

TOTAL 185 64.6 580 3.14

Commercial Development

PHASE AREA OPEN SPACE COMM. MAXIMUM COMM. EST. CONST. 

(AC.) (AC.) S.F. FLOOR AREA RATIO YEAR

A 1 0.2 +/- 7000 +/- 0.2 2024

B 1.25 0.2 +/- 7000 +/- 0.2 2025

C 1 0.1 +/- 7000 +/- 0.2 2027

D 1.25 0.1 +/- 7000 +/- 0.2 2029

E 1 0.2 +/- 7000 +/- 0.2 2031

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 

 

 

Amendments 

 
The terms of this Agreement may be amended by the mutual consent of the parties hereto or 
their successors in interest.  A major modification of the terms of this Agreement shall follow 
the same procedures required for the initial approval of the agreement, which procedures shall 
include a public hearing.  A minor amendment to the approved South Mills Landing plan may be 
approved by the Planning Director and shall not be considered a major amendment to this 
Agreement.   

The Developer shall provide an annual report to Camden County outlining the status of the 
development plan and any changes to the development schedule.  The developer may provide 
an annual amendment to the phasing schedule based on market conditions.   

4.A.G

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.H

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

 M
P

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

u
p

d
at

ed
 2

-2
0-

20
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



4.A.I

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

a 
M

P
 T

IA
 E

xe
c 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.I

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

a 
M

P
 T

IA
 E

xe
c 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.I

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

a 
M

P
 T

IA
 E

xe
c 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.I

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

a 
M

P
 T

IA
 E

xe
c 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.I

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

a 
M

P
 T

IA
 E

xe
c 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



4.A.I

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

a 
M

P
 T

IA
 E

xe
c 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Approximately 3,700 feet

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
90

0 
fe

et

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
1,

70
0 

fe
et

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
1,

50
0 

fe
et

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
40

0 
fe

et

4.A.I

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

a 
M

P
 T

IA
 E

xe
c 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



Compatibility with Surrounding Area 

 

The proposed use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the 

area in which it is located.  The northern tract is abounded by US 17 to the northwest, by Joy’s Creek 

Canal to the east, and by the South Mills Village core district to the south.  A 50’ vegetative buffer is 

being provided to adjacent residential development to the south. 

 

The south tract is bounded to the north and west by Main Street and Main Street extension (US 17 

Business) with residential development beyond to the west.  To the east is residential development and 

farmland and to the south is undeveloped woodland and wetlands.   

 

Compatible residential development is being proposed and there will be 50’ buffers adjacent to existing 

residential development.   

 

The applicant is not aware of any adverse impacts on land value in the surrounding area.  The applicant 

anticipates that the proposed stormwater improvements will benefit the property values of the nearby 

community by improving existing drainage conditions. 

 

The proposed use is compatible with the adjacent development and will further the county’s goal of 

concentrating new residential development in the vicinity of existing development and where public 

utilities are readily available. 

 

Lot sizes appear to be compatible with existing lots in the adjoining and near-by South Mills Village area. 

4.A.J

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

 M
P

 C
o

m
p

at
ib

ili
ty

 w
it

h
 S

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 A
re

a 
- 

C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



CONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED POLICY GUIDANCE 

 
The use is consistent with the Camden County 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan policies addressing 

density, recreational and open space, transportation infrastructure, and utilities. 

 

Community Vision Statement:  The project is consistent with the following excerpt from the Camden 

County Community Vision Statement:   

 

 “New development will be focused within targeted core areas to bring new life into established 

county villages and to efficiently use existing and plant infrastructure and public resources.  New 

housing choices will be made available to serve young families and professionals and retirees.” 

 

Density:  The project is located within Village Mixed Use and Village Rresidential land use designations 

and proposes an overall density of 3.14 units per acre (2.53 dwelling units per acre including the 

adjacent 44 acre tract that is not being developed).  The Village Mixed Use designation provides for 

between 3 and 14 dwelling units per acre, and the Village Residential envisions up to 3 dwelling units 

per acre.  The proposed use will include residential development and village like clusters and will include 

open spaces surrounding the clusters, helping to prevent traditional suburban sprawl.   

 

Stormwater:  The applicant is placing significant stormwater management facilities on site to collect and 

manage stormwater.  The applicant plans to model the 100 year storm event and to manage stormwater 

runoff from that event.  This commitment will provide a public benefit by improving existing drainage 

conditions using private funds, reducing runoff from the site and reducing impacts to offsite drainage 

outlets. 

 

The development is consistent with the following land use policies from the LUP: 

 

Objective #1:  Promote a Targeted Development Pattern:  “Camden County will work with developers to 

encourage new residential and non-residential in a manner that is consistent with the county’s Future 

Land Use Plan,” including: 

 

Action Strategy # 1:  Promote Target Development through Rezoning. 

“Promote targeted development, as identified by the Future Land Use map, through appropriate 

rezoning and development approvals,”  and: 

 

Action Strategy #6:  Provide Public Water and Sewer in Targeted Development Areas. 

“Support the extension of public water and wastewater service within targeted development 

Areas and discourage extension of these services outside of these areas.” 

 

 

The development is consistent with LUP Objective #4: Ensure that New Development has a Positive 

Impact on the County Budget including: 

 

4.A.K

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

 M
P

 C
O

N
S

IS
T

E
N

C
Y

 W
IT

H
 A

D
O

P
T

E
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E

 -
 C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



 Action Strategy #1: Promote Development Where Public Infrastructure Exists or Is Planned: 

 “Promote a targeted development pattern that focuses development in areas where public 

 infrastructure and facilities are existing or planned, and away from areas where new systems 

 would be needed to service new development.” 

 

The proposal is consistent with Objective #5:  Provide New Housing Choices including: 

 

 Action Strategy #2: New Zoning for Moderate and Higher Density Housing: 

 “Develop and adopt new housing districts to allow for moderate and higher density residential 

 residential development within the core village areas as identified on the Future Land Use Plan 

 map.  Encourage the use of the Planned Unit Development zoning district for developments 

 proposing higher density mixed-use development.” 

 

The development is consistent with the following specific language from the Village Mixed Use Land Use 

Description:   

 

 “This area includes new opportunities for moderate to higher density mixed use including 

residential, commercial and recreational uses.  It includes…a proposed planned unit 

development north of Main Street in the South Mills core village area”, and: 

 

 “Village Mixed-Use includes future areas for development of more dense residential 

neighborhoods that provide a diversity of housing types and housing options.  Areas included 

single-family detached units, townhomes, duplexes, condominiums, apartments, senior housing, 

and other multi-family dwelling units.  Housing densities should range from 3-14 dwelling units 

per acre.  Development should fit the context of the most proximate core village area.  

Appropriate zoning for village mixed-use development includes the Planned Unit Development 

district. 

 

The project is consistent with the following additional policies from the LUP: 

 

1. The extension of public utilities within village residential areas in South Mills and 

Courthouse/Camden is appropriate.  The village mixed-use area located in Shiloh is more 

appropriately serviced using a small package plant than public sanitary sewer. 

2. Linkages should be made to provide vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian access between 

residential neighborhoods and proximate commercial and recreational centers (The 

development is providing pedestrian connectivity to the South Mills Main Street area). 

3. Recreational facilities provided in new residential developments should be designed to provide 

maximum access to properties in the development and should include passive and active 

recreational facilities, with emphasis on providing sidewalks and biking trails. 

4. Stormwater management best practices should be used when designing residential 

developments to minimize flows and maintain water quality. 

 

The development is consistent with Objective #5:  New Residential Development to Assist in 

Development of Recreational Facilities.  “Per the county’s zoning ordinance, new residential or mixed 

4.A.K

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

 M
P

 C
O

N
S

IS
T

E
N

C
Y

 W
IT

H
 A

D
O

P
T

E
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E

 -
 C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



use developments located in targeted areas should include recreational amenities.  These standards 

should be improved to require appropriate bicycle and walking paths, and link to adjacent pathways as 

possible”, including:   

 

Action Strategy #1:  New Developments in Targeted Development Areas to Include Open Space 

and Recreational Facilities:   

“Continue to require open space and recreational facilities as part of residential and mixed use 

Developments for developments within targeted development areas located in South Mills and 

Camden core village areas,” and: 

 

Action Strategy #2:  Update County Development Standards to Require Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Paths as Part of New Residential Development: 

“Update the county’s Unified Development Ordinance to require the development of bicycle 

and walking paths as part of residential and mixed use developments of a certain size.” 

 

The project will provide for sidewalks, greenways, and will have walking trails to encourage mobility by 

pedestrians and bicyclists.  It also preserves a significant amount of open space and natural features 

throughout the development to promote recreation and preserve natural areas. 

 

The development will also provide linkage to the South Mills Village core area. 

 

The development is consistent with Objective #3:  Create Better Connectivity and Accessibility within 

New Developments.  “As new development occurs, the county should work with developers and 

adjacent property owners to create connections to the development site and internal connections 

within the site that are efficient and safe.  Access to main roadways should be limited to reduce conflicts 

associated with vehicular turning movements.” 

 

The developer has completed a Traffic Impact Analysis that recommends safe and efficient 

improvements to the limited roadway connections in a manner that is intended to reduce conflicts and 

provide safe vehicular turning movements. 

 

The project is consistent with Objective #3:  Promote Land Use Patterns that Efficiently Use Public Water 

and Sewer Services:  “Camden County will promote a land development pattern that efficiently uses 

existing and planned public water and sewer services and that capitalizes on economic opportunities.”   

 

This includes Action Strategy #1:  Promote a Land Use Pattern that Utilizes Centralized Utility 

Systems: 

“Promote and facilitate forms of development that will allow for more centralized and 

environmentally effective systems that will serve as the backbone for future growth.” 

 

The project is also consistent with Objective #6:  Identify Opportunities to Implement the Camden 

County Water and Sewer Master Plan:  “Of particular consideration is the recommendation for provision 

of wastewater treatment at the South Camden Wastewater Treatment Plant in South Mills.” 

 

4.A.K

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

 M
P

 C
O

N
S

IS
T

E
N

C
Y

 W
IT

H
 A

D
O

P
T

E
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E

 -
 C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



In addition to the Camden County 2013 Comprehensive Land Use Plan, the project is consistent with 

several provisions of the South Mills Small Area Plan, including the following:   

 

 “From the overall provision, the plans main goal is to transform South Mills Village into its own 

economically sustainable community, while also enticing families to pursue all of their daily 

activities within the Township.  A Planned Unit Development with mixed residential and 

commercial uses should further the implantation of this goal.” 

 

 “Densification via Sewer – Implications for Economy and Housing:  With the construction of 

sewer lines within the South Mills core, there will be a greater potential for higher density 

commercial and multi-family residential developments.  It is especially important to the South 

Mills Village Core to take advantage of what a sanitary sewer system has to offer, namely, the 

opportunity to bring in some density and place characteristics to the village and a more 

compact, efficient, walkable village form.”   

 

 “Some smaller-scale multi-family residential development like townhouses may be appropriate 

within the community core, if appropriately designed and scaled to the village.” 

 

The proposal is also consistent with the SAP goal of providing better street lighting.  “Street lights will 

not only bring character to the Village Core (if pedestrian-scale lighting is installed) but add Village Core 

security at night.” 

 

This development is also consistent with the following land use regulations identified in the Small Area 

Plan:   “Specifically, this plan proposes several of the following changes:  ….higher density permissions 

upon the extension of sewer.” 

 

In summary, it appears the development proposal is consistent with many provision of both the Camden 

County 2035 Comprehensive Land Use plan and the South Mills Small Area Plan. 

 

 

4.A.K

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

 M
P

 C
O

N
S

IS
T

E
N

C
Y

 W
IT

H
 A

D
O

P
T

E
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E

 -
 C

o
p

y 
 (

27
31

 :
 S

o
u

th
 M

ill
s 

L
an

d
in

g
)



1

Dan Porter

From: Cox <greg316@cox.net>
Sent: Thursday, May 07, 2020 6:19 AM
To: Dan Porter
Subject: [External] Re: [External] Fwd: South Mills Landing - 10-yr Model Continuity Error

Good morning  
 
Andy has a model of the existing conditions.  He has not submitted anything else.  The proposed conditions will 
be challenging. I do not know how they proposed to show that development doesn’t increase runoff.   
 
Greg 

Sent from my iPad 
 
 
On May 6, 2020, at 4:59 PM, Dan Porter <dporter@camdencountync.gov> wrote: 

 
AND??? 
Do we have enough information to proceed to consider the preliminary plat so they can tackle the plan 
and lost development conditions. 
  
Dan B. Porter, Planning Director 
Camden County 
PO Box 74 
117 NC Hwy 343 North 
Camden, NC 27921 
Ph:   252 338 1919 Ext. 263 
Fax: 252 333 1603 
Email:  dporter@camdencountync.gov 
              dbp0124@hotmail.com 
  
  
*DISCLAIMER: Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Privacy Acts (FOIPA) and North Carolina General 
Statutes Chapter 132, Public Records, this electronic mail message and any attachments hereto, as well 
as any electronic mail messages(s) sent in response to it may be considered public record and as such 
subject to request and review by anyone.     
  

From: Cox [mailto:greg316@cox.net]  
Sent: Tuesday, May 05, 2020 6:12 AM 
To: Dan. 263 Porter 
Subject: [External] Fwd: South Mills Landing - 10-yr Model Continuity Error 
  
  

Sent from my iPad 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

4.A.L

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

a 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 c

o
m

m
en

ts
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



2

From: David Deel <dadeeleng@gmail.com> 
Date: May 4, 2020 at 7:58:32 PM EDT 
To: Greg <greg316@cox.net> 
Subject: Re:  South Mills Landing - 10-yr Model Continuity Error 

Thanks! 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
On May 4, 2020, at 3:36 PM, Greg <greg316@cox.net> wrote: 

Pack it in 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
 
On May 4, 2020, at 2:34 PM, David Deel 
<dadeeleng@gmail.com> wrote: 

 
Greg; 
  
I extended the time period so that the model would 
run for three days after the end of the rainfall event 
and my flow continuity error remains at 6.29% and 
the peak flow at Outfall 1 remains at 41.78 cfs 
  
Thanks, 
Andy 
  
On Mon, May 4, 2020 at 2:15 PM Greg 
<greg316@cox.net> wrote: 

Okay. You’ve reported your efforts.  One thing 
just hit me....allow the model to run two days 
beyond the the rain   After that give up 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
> On May 4, 2020, at 1:28 PM, David Deel 
<dadeeleng@gmail.com> wrote: 
>  
>  
> Greg; 
>  
> Well... I have gone through the nodes with high 
instability indexes, modified inverts to maintain 
positive slopes, removed culverts, reconnected 
drainage areas downstream, replaced culverts with 

4.A.L

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

a 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 c

o
m

m
en

ts
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



3

open channels, replaced culverts with equivalent 
pipes, reduced my time step down to 0.067 
seconds, etc. etc., etc....  I can't come up with a set 
of modifications that really moves that flow 
continuity error (it has stayed in the 5.9% - 7.1% 
range the entire time).    My flow at the related 
outfall (link E001-Outfall1) has barely moved as 
I've made these changes (it has varied from 41.33 
cfs to 41.78 cfs).  I think I'm past that "spend a 
couple of hours on it" plan to see if I could pull it 
into the 1.0% range. 
>  
> -Andy 
>  
> --  
> Deel Engineering, PLLC 
> P.O. Box 3901 
> Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948 
> (252)202-3803 

 
 
--  
Deel Engineering, PLLC 
P.O. Box 3901 
Kill Devil Hills, NC 27948 
(252)202-3803 

4.A.L

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

a 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 c

o
m

m
en

ts
 -

 C
o

p
y 

 (
27

31
 :

 S
o

u
th

 M
ill

s 
L

an
d

in
g

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   April Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: April 2020 monthly report (PDF) 

 

Summary:  April Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

5.A

Packet Pg. 103



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l 2
02

0 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

42
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l 2
02

0 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

42
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l 2
02

0 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

42
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l 2
02

0 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

42
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l 2
02

0 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

42
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l 2
02

0 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

42
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l 2
02

0 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

42
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Emergency Management 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional Hazard 

Mitigation Plan 

 

Attachments: Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional HMP

 (DOC) 

 

Summary: 

A Hazard Mitigation Plan is put in place to better protect our citizens and their property from the 

effects of natural and human-caused hazards and it is required to maintain eligibility for 

mitigation funding from FEMA (this is the funding we are currently using for the acquisition and 

demolition/rebuilds of property from Hurricane Matthew).  

 

The Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan (RHMP) is currently being reviewed by the 

North Carolina Department of Public Safety (NCDPS).  The existing plan expired on May 12, 

2020.  The contractor has been working with NCDPS and FEMA to get this plan approved.  In 

the past, plans were not adopted until both the State and FEMA reviews were completed.  That 

process can take several months, and possibly longer during this difficult time.  In order to 

ensure continued compliance, FEMA has authorized communities to proceed with adoption 

immediately, as the plan is considered a living document that is subject to change.  Any changes 

resulting from the review will be incorporated into the final version of the plan.   

 

Recommendation:  Approval. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 111



  
 

Camden County, North Carolina 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE  

ALBEMARLE REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, Camden County is vulnerable to an array of natural hazards that can cause loss of 

life and damages to public and private property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County and participating municipal jurisdictions desire to seek ways to mitigate 

situations that may aggravate such circumstances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the development and implementation of a hazard mitigation plan can result in 

actions that reduce the long-term risk to life and property from natural hazards; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Camden County Board of Commissioners to protect its citizens 

and property from the effects of natural hazards by preparing and maintaining a local hazard 

mitigation plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is also the intent of the Camden County Board of Commissioners to fulfill its 

obligation under North Carolina General Statutes, Chapter 166A: North Carolina Emergency 

Management Act and Section 322: Mitigation Planning of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 

and Emergency Assistance Act to remain eligible to receive state and federal assistance in the 

event of a declared disaster affecting the Camden County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Camden County actively participated in the planning process for the Albemarle 

Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan and has prepared a regional hazard mitigation plan update with 

input from the appropriate local and state officials; and 

 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management and the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency have reviewed the Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

for legislative compliance and have approved the plan pending the completion of local adoption 

procedures; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of Commissioners of Camden County 

hereby: 

 

 1.  Adopts the Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 

 

 2.  Vests the Emergency Management Coordinator with the responsibility, authority, 

and the means to: 

 

 (a)  Inform all concerned parties of this action. 

 (b)  Cooperate with Federal, State and local agencies and private firms 

which undertake to study, survey, map, and identify floodplain or 

flood-related erosion areas, and cooperate with neighboring 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 R

eg
io

n
al

 H
M

P
  (

27
43

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 R

eg
io

n
al

 H
az

ar
d

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 P
la

n
)



communities with respect to management of adjoining floodplain 

and/or flood-related erosion areas in order to prevent aggravation 

of existing hazards. 

 

 3.  Appoints the Emergency Management Coordinator to assure that, in cooperation 

with the other participating jurisdictions, the Hazard Mitigation Plan is reviewed 

annually and every five years as specified in the Plan to assure that the Plan is in 

compliance with all State and Federal regulations and that any needed revisions or 

amendments to the Plan are developed and presented to the Camden County 

Board of Commissioners for consideration. 

 

 4.  Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry 

out the objectives of the 2020 Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 

 

Adopted this 6th day of July, 2020. 

 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Tom White, Chairman 

       Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 R

eg
io

n
al

 H
M

P
  (

27
43

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 R

eg
io

n
al

 H
az

ar
d

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 P
la

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.C 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   COVID-19 Small Business and Non-Profit Relief Grant 

Program 

 

Attachments: Authorization to Establish the COVID19 Small 

Business Grant

 (DOCX) 

RECOVERY GRANT APPLICATION FINAL EDIT

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary, recommendation and supporting documentation attached. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 114



Authorization to Establish the COVID-19 Small Business and Non-Profit Relief Grant 

Program 

 

REQUEST: 

Board of Commissioners authorization to create a grant program to provide relief to small 

businesses and non-profits impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The 

program will be funded through an allocation of the Coronavirus Relief Funds 

provided through the federal CARES Act. Approval is also requested for the County 

Manager to administer the grant program working with the Economic Development 

Commission. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The County Manager recommends the Board of Commissioners approve the 

disbursement of between $80K to $100K to establish the COVID-19 Small 

Business and Non-Profit Relief Grant Program (Grant Program) for businesses and 

non-profits affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and authorize the County Manager to 

administer the Grant Program to meet program objectives. 

 

TIMING: 

Board action is requested on July 6, 2020, in order to establish the grant program by 

July 15, 2020. 

BACKGROUND: 

During a meeting between staff and with the NC Pandemic Recovery Office (NCPRO) on May 

6, 2020 a plan was discussed for the County Distribution of the Coronavirus Relief Fund in the 

amount of $426,810. 

The plan was completed and submitted to NCPRO for review on May 27, 2020. The plan 

includes a number of areas where the funds can be spent including grant funding to assist small 

businesses negatively affected by COVID-19. Staff has developed a program to provide grant 

funds to eligible entities which would not be repaid by the selected awardees. The applicant pool 

will extend to non-profit organizations as well as small businesses. One of the objectives of the 

Grant Program is to support eligible small businesses, including non-profit organizations in 

Camden County, through grants to address costs of business interruptions caused by required 

closures. The size of the Grant Program award would be made based upon the number of 

employees. The following structure proposed: 

Employees, 1 - 10:    $1,500 

Employees, 11 – 25: $2,000 

Employees, 26 – 49: $2,500 

Funds to administer the Grant Program would come from the CARES ACT. All applicants will 

receive direct communication about their status and entry in the Grant Program.   

5.C.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

 t
o

 E
st

ab
lis

h
 t

h
e 

C
O

V
ID

19
 S

m
al

l B
u

si
n

es
s 

G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t



Staff will continue to evaluate the most effective means of supporting small businesses 

during the COVID-19 pandemic. No later than sixty (60) days after the 

establishment of the Grant Program, staff will make a recommendation to the Board 

whether to contribute additional funds into the Grant Program and/or with alternative options to 

deploy the balance of the CARES Act funds to support economic recovery. The Board may 

increase this fund at any time through October 30, 2020.  
 

5.C.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

 t
o

 E
st

ab
lis

h
 t

h
e 

C
O

V
ID

19
 S

m
al

l B
u

si
n

es
s 

G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t



RECOVERY GRANT APPLICATION 

REQUIRED INFORMATION AND DOCUMENTATION 

Business Legal Name:__________________________________________________ 

Business Address: Street / City / State / Zip Code: 

____________________________________________________________________ 

Business Phone:_______________ ______Cell Phone:________________________ 

Email:______________________________Website:_________________________ 

When did the business start operating / open?   

Month:______ Day:______Year:______ Federal Tax ID #:_____________________ 

 

Legal structure (choose one): 

 Sole Proprietorship 

 LLC 

 Partnership 

 Corporation 

 Independent Contractor 

 Other: Explain 

Check all that apply: 

 Small, Women, and Minority Owned (SWaM) Eligible 

 Veteran Owned (must provide copy of DD-214) 

 Small, Women, and Minority Owned (SWaM) Certified 

If Veteran owned, please provide a copy of DD-214: 

As of February 29, 2020, did you have employees?  If, so how many?* 

 Yes*____________________________ 

 No 

 

 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

IN
A

L
 E

D
IT

  (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION 

Complete this section for each person who has 20% or more ownership interest in the business. 

1. Name: First_________________________________Last__________________________________ 

2. Home Address: 

Street_____________________________________City________________________ 

State______________________________________Zip Code_____________ 

3. Home Phone:_______________Cell Phone:________________Work Phone:____________ 

APPLICANT QUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE 

Program eligibility is limited to those businesses which meet the following qualifications. 

Has the business been established and operational in Camden County for at least the past 12 months (since 

March 1, 2019)? 

 Yes 

 No 

Is the business current on all Camden County Tax obligations? 

 Yes 

 No 

How often do you process and run payroll? 

 Weekly (52x per year) 

 Bi-weekly (26x per year) 

 Semi-monthly (24x per year) 

 Monthly (12x per year) 

Total number of employees as of February 29, 2020: 

• Full Time:_____________ 

• Part Time:_____________ 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

IN
A

L
 E

D
IT

  (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



Total number of employees as of last payroll run: 

• Full Time:_____________ 

• Part Time:_____________ 

Total number of employees either laid-off or furloughed as a result of COVID-19                                              

(since February 29, 2020): 

• Full Time:______________ 

• Part Time:______________ 

Describe how business operations have been adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Describe your 

plans for current and near term operations (during reduced COVID19 business restrictions) in order to remain 

operational. Identify how you have maintained employment of all or certain employees and the type of 

positions being retained in comparison to pre-COVID-19 disruption: 

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please list all grant/loan proceeds received from SBA programs via the 2020 CARES Act: 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Proposed Use of Grant Funds 

Building Rent/Mortgage Payments Amount ($)_________________ 

Description: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Working Capital Amount ($)____________________ 

Description: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

IN
A

L
 E

D
IT

  (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



Inventory Amount ($)__________________________ 

Description: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Supplies Amount ($)___________________________ 

Description 

__________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Marketing/Advertising ($)______________________ 

Description: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Amount Total ($):_____________________________ 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED 

• The most recent year-end 2019 financial statement (P/L Statement & Balance Sheet) 

• Current Year-to-date financial statement (P&L Statement & Balance Sheet) 

• Federal Payroll Tax forms for January – March 31, 2020. 

Litigation Disclosure: 

A. Have you, or any principal, officer or director of your company been involved in any claim or litigation 

with the County of Camden during the last ten (10) years? 

 Yes* 

 No 

B. Has any parent company or wholly owned subsidiary of your company been involved in any claim or 

litigation with the County of Camden during the last ten (10) years? 

 Yes* 

 No 

*If you answered “Yes” to A and/or B above, please state the name(s) of the person(s), the nature and the 

status and/or outcome of the litigation: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

IN
A

L
 E

D
IT

  (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



By checking below, each applicant agrees to the following statements: 

 I acknowledge that this completed and signed application is only an application for the disaster assistance 

grant funds expressed herein. This application, even if favorably received, does not constitute a commitment 

on the part of Camden County to extend grant funds. 

 

 I agree to notify Camden County immediately in writing if any of the information contained in this 

application materially changes in any respect. 

 

 I agree to hold harmless and indemnify Camden County and its board members, employees, agents, 

representatives and associates against any claims, charge, suit, damages or other similar liability and to further 

waive any claims against Camden County whether now, existing or arising in the future regarding any 

damages, losses, liability, costs or expenses (including any attorney fees) incurred and arising from this 

application. 

 

 I understand that by submitting this application Camden County is under no obligation to approve and/or 

extend an assistance grant. 

Non-Discrimination in Grant Awards 

Camden County does not discriminate against faith-based organizations or against any grant applicant 

because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability or any other basis prohibited by state 

law. 

 

PLEASE CHECK AND COMPLETE APPROPRIATE BOX 

Only complete sections that apply to you. 

If you are an Employee: 

 I am an employee and I work for Camden County in the Department of:___________________ 

If you are Related to an Employee: 

 I am related to a Camden County employee. 

Their name is:_________________________________ 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

IN
A

L
 E

D
IT

  (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



They work for: 

 Camden County Department 

 Camden County EDC Board Member 

 Any Camden County Elected or Appointed Official 

My relationship to the person above: 

 Father 

 Mother 

 Daughter 

 Son 

 Other:___________________________ 

If Neither Apply: 

 I am not related to an employee of Camden County, nor am I an employee of the Camden County. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

I HEREBY CERTIFY AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE READ THIS ENTIRE 

APPLICATION AS COMPLETED, AND THAT EACH RESPONSE IS TRUE, COMPLETE, AND 

ACCURATE. 

Signature:______________________________________________ 

Title:__________________________________________________ 

Date: Month / Date / Year:_________________________________ 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

IN
A

L
 E

D
IT

  (
27

27
 :

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 N

o
n

-P
ro

fi
t 

R
el

ie
f 

G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.D 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden County Library Financing 

 

Attachments: Resolution Calling Public Hearing-Camden 2020 IFA 

(Library) (DOC) 

Reimbursement Resolution-Camden 2020 IFA 

(Library) (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

The Resolution Calling for a Public Hearing is prepared to call for a Public hearing for the 

Proposed Public Library and Administrative Complex for the County of Camden. The County of 

Camden is considering entering into an installment financing agreement not to exceed 

$3,600,000 for the proposed Complex. The County has decided to phase this project with the 

Library identified as Phase I. 

 

The Reimbursement Resolution is prepared to allow the County to reimburse itself for 

expenditures prior to approval of the Installment Financing. The County intends to advance its 

own funds in order to pay certain costs upfront associated with the Library and Administrative 

Complex Project.   

5.D

Packet Pg. 123



 

 

The Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, North Carolina met in a regular 

meeting at the Upstairs Historic Courtroom located at 117 North 343 in Camden, North Carolina, 

at 7:00 p.m. on July 6, 2020. 

Present:  Chair Tom White, presiding, and Commissioners  

  

Absent:  Commissioners  

  

Also Present:  

  

*     *     *     *     *     * 

____________________ introduced the following resolution the title of which was read 

and a copy of which had been distributed to each Commissioner: 

RESOLUTION CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION 

WITH A PROPOSED INSTALLMENT FINANCING AGREEMENT TO 

FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF 

A NEW PUBLIC LIBRARY AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX FOR 

THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS, the County of Camden, North Carolina (the “County”) is considering 

entering into an installment financing agreement pursuant G.S. 160A-20 in the principal amount 

not to exceed $3,600,000 for the purpose of acquiring, constructing and equipping a new public 

library and administrative complex for the County (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with G.S. 160A-20(g), the County is required to hold a public 

hearing on such installment financing agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners for the 

County hereby fixes 7:00 p.m. on August 3, 2020, in the Upstairs Historic Courtroom located at 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 C
al

lin
g

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

IF
A

 (
L

ib
ra

ry
) 

 (
27

33
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
)



 

2 

117 North 343 in Camden, North Carolina, as the hour, day and place for the public hearing on 

such proposed installment financing agreement and hereby directs the Clerk to the Board of 

Commissioners for the County to publish notice of such public hearing once in The Daily 

Advance not later than the 10th day before said date. 

Upon motion of Commissioner __________________, the foregoing resolution entitled 

“RESOLUTION CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH A PROPOSED 

INSTALLMENT FINANCING AGREEMENT TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, 

CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF A NEW PUBLIC LIBRARY AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX FOR THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA” 

was adopted by the following vote: 

Ayes:  

  

Noes:  

  

*     *     *     *     *     * 

I, Karen M. Davis, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, 

North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of so much of the 

proceedings of said Board of Commissioners for said County at a regular meeting held on July 6, 

2020, as it relates in any way to the adoption of foregoing resolution calling for a public hearing 

on a proposed installment financing agreement and that said proceedings are recorded in the 

minutes of said Board of Commissioners for said County. 

I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that proper notice of such regular meeting was 

given as required by North Carolina law. 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 C
al

lin
g

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

IF
A

 (
L

ib
ra

ry
) 

 (
27

33
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
)



 

3 

WITNESS my hand and official seal of said County this 6th day of July, 2020. 

____________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

[SEAL] 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 C
al

lin
g

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

IF
A

 (
L

ib
ra

ry
) 

 (
27

33
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
)



 

 

The Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, North Carolina met in a regular 

meeting at the Upstairs Historic Courtroom located at 117 North 343 in Camden, North Carolina, 

at 7:00 p.m. on July 6, 2020. 

Present:  Chair Tom White, presiding, and Commissioners  

  

Absent:  Commissioners  

  

Also present:  

  

*     *     *     *     * 

____________________ introduced the following resolution the title of which was read 

and a copy of which had been previously distributed to each Commissioner: 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 

DECLARING ITS OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE 

EXPENDITURES UNDER UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF 

TREASURY REGULATIONS 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) for the County of 

Camden, North Carolina (the “County”) as follows: 

Section 1.  The Board hereby finds, determines and declares the following: 

(a) Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations (the “Regulations”) prescribes specific 

procedures which will be applicable to certain bonds or notes issued by or on behalf of the 

County including, without limitation, a requirement that the County declare its official intent to 

reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the County prior to, or 

within sixty (60) days of, payment of the expenditures to be reimbursed. 

(b) The County intends to advance its own funds in order to pay certain capital costs (the 

“Original Expenditures”) relating to the acquisition, construction and equipping of a new public 

library and administrative complex for the County (the “Project”). 

(c) The County reasonably expects to reimburse itself for the Original Expenditures from 

the proceeds of debt to be incurred by the County. 

(d) $3,600,000 is the maximum principal amount of debt expected to be incurred for the 

purpose of paying the costs of the Project. 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

IF
A

 (
L

ib
ra

ry
) 

 (
27

33
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
)



 

2 

(e) This declaration of official intent is made pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury 

Regulations to expressly declare the official intent of the County to reimburse itself from the 

proceeds of debt to be hereinafter incurred by the County for certain expenditures paid by the 

County on or after the date which is sixty (60) days prior to the date hereof. 

(f) The funds heretofore advanced or to be advanced by the County to pay the Original 

Expenditures are or will be available only on a temporary basis, and do not consist of funds that 

were otherwise earmarked or intended to be used by the County to permanently finance the 

Original Expenditures. 

(g) All Original Expenditures to be reimbursed by the County were paid no more than 

sixty (60) days prior to, or will be paid on or after the date of, this declaration of official intent, 

except with respect to certain amounts incurred before such 60-day period not exceeding 20% of 

the issue price of the proceeds of the debt to be hereinafter incurred which are expended for 

“preliminary expenditures” within the meaning of Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations 

(the “Preliminary Expenditures”).  The County understands that, except for the Preliminary 

Expenditures, such reimbursement must occur not later than eighteen (18) months after the later 

of (a) the date the Original Expenditures were paid and (b) the date the Project is placed in 

service or abandoned, but in no event more than three (3) years after the Original Expenditures 

were paid. 

Section 2.  This resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

Upon motion of _____________________, the foregoing resolution entitled 

“RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA DECLARING ITS 

OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES UNDER UNITED STATES 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY REGULATIONS” was adopted by the following vote: 

Ayes:  

  

Noes:  

  

*     *     *     *     *  

I, Karen M. Davis, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, 

North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of so much of the 

proceedings of said Board of Commissioners for said County at a regular meeting held on July 6, 

2020, as relates in any way to the introduction and adoption of the foregoing resolution and that 

said proceedings are recorded in the minutes of said Board of Commissioners. 

I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that proper notice of such regular meeting was 

given as required by North Carolina law. 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

IF
A

 (
L

ib
ra

ry
) 

 (
27

33
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
)



 

3 

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of said County this 6th day of July, 2020. 

  

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

[SEAL] 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

IF
A

 (
L

ib
ra

ry
) 

 (
27

33
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.E 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden County School Bond Referendum 

 

Attachments: Introduce Bond Order-Camden 2020 Referendum 

(Schools) (DOC) 

Sworn Statement of Debt-Camden 2020 Referendum

 (DOC) 

Statement of Total Estimated Interest-Camden 2020 

Referendum (Schools)

 (DOC) 

 
Summary: 

This order is put in place to authorize contracting for debt in evidence of School Bonds in the 

amount not to exceed $33,000,000. The document allows  for the Public hearing to be set on 

August 3rd at 7PM at the regular scheduled Board of Commissioners meeting.  

 

When introducing the Bond Order both the Sworn Statement of Debt & the Statement of Total 

Estimated Interest are being filed with the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners as required. This 

is for information only and no other action is required at this time by the Board of 

Commissioners. 

5.E

Packet Pg. 130



 

 

The Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, North Carolina met in a regular 

meeting at the Upstairs Historic Courtroom located at 117 North 343 in Camden, North Carolina, 

at 7:00 p.m. on July 6, 2020. 

Present:  Chair Tom White, presiding, and Commissioners  

  

Absent:  Commissioners  

  

Also Present:  

  

*       *       *       *       * 

____________________ introduced the following order authorizing bonds the title of 

which was read and a copy of which had been distributed to each Commissioner: 

ORDER AUTHORIZING 

$33,000,000 SCHOOL BONDS 

BE IT ORDERED by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, North 

Carolina: 

1.  That, pursuant to The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, the County of 

Camden, North Carolina is hereby authorized to contract a debt, in addition to any and all other 

debt which said County may now or hereafter have power or authority to contract, and in 

evidence thereof to issue School Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding 

$33,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds, together with any other available funds, for 

acquiring, constructing, expanding and renovating school buildings and other school facilities in 

said County, and the acquisition of related land, rights of way and equipment. 

2.  That taxes shall be levied in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and the 

interest on said bonds. 

5.E.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

tr
o

d
u

ce
 B

o
n

d
 O

rd
er

-C
am

d
en

 2
02

0 
R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 (
S

ch
o

o
ls

) 
 (

27
34

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ch

o
o

l B
o

n
d

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
)



 

2 

3.  That a sworn statement of the debt of said County has been filed with the Clerk to said 

Board of Commissioners and is open to public inspection. 

4.  That this order shall take effect when approved by the voters of said County at a 

referendum as provided in said Act. 

Thereupon, upon motion of ____________________, the order entitled “ORDER 

AUTHORIZING $33,000,000 SCHOOL BONDS” was adopted upon introduction by the 

following vote:  

Ayes:  

  

Noes:  

  

The Board of Commissioners thereupon designated the Finance Officer to file with the 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, the sworn statement of debt of said County which is 

required by The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, to be filed after the bond order has 

been introduced and before the public hearing thereon.  The Board of Commissioners also 

designated the Finance Officer to file with the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners the 

statement of total estimated interest which is required by The Local Government Bond Act, as 

amended, to be filed with the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners at the time the bond order is 

introduced and further directed the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners to file a copy of such 

statement with the Local Government Commission. 

Thereupon, the Finance Officer presented the sworn statement of debt and the statement 

of total estimated interest to the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners as so required. 

On motion duly made and carried, the Board of Commissioners for said County fixed 

7:00 p.m. on August 3, 2020, in the Upstairs Historic Courtroom located at 117 North 343 in 

5.E.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

tr
o

d
u

ce
 B

o
n

d
 O

rd
er

-C
am

d
en

 2
02

0 
R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 (
S

ch
o

o
ls

) 
 (

27
34

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ch

o
o

l B
o

n
d

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
)



 

3 

Camden, North Carolina, as the hour, day and place for the public hearing upon the foregoing 

order and directed the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners to publish said order, as required by 

The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, once in The Daily Advance not later than the 

sixth day before said date. 

*       *       *       *       * 

I, Karen M. Davis, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, 

North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of so much of the 

proceedings of said Board at a regular meeting held on July 6, 2020, as it relates in any way to 

the introduction and adoption on introduction of an order authorizing bonds of said County and 

the calling of a public hearing upon such order and that said proceedings are to be recorded in the 

minutes of said Board. 

I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that proper notice of such meeting was given as 

required by North Carolina law. 

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of said County this 6th day of July, 2020. 

  

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

[SEAL] 

5.E.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

tr
o

d
u

ce
 B

o
n

d
 O

rd
er

-C
am

d
en

 2
02

0 
R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 (
S

ch
o

o
ls

) 
 (

27
34

 :
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 S
ch

o
o

l B
o

n
d

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
)



 

 

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 

SWORN STATEMENT OF DEBT MADE PURSUANT TO THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOND ACT, AS AMENDED 

I, Stephanie Jackson, Finance Officer of the County of Camden, North Carolina, having 

been designated by the Board of Commissioners for said County to make and file with the Clerk 

to the Board of Commissioners a statement of the debt of said County pursuant to The Local 

Government Bond Act, as amended, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the following is a true 

statement as shown by the books in my office, not taking into consideration any debt incurred or 

to be incurred in anticipation of the collection of taxes or other revenues or in anticipation of the 

sale of bonds other than funding and refunding bonds: 

(a) GROSS DEBT 

a(1) Outstanding debt evidenced by bonds: $              -0- 

a(2) Bonds authorized by orders introduced, 

but not yet adopted: 

School Bonds 

 

 

$33,000,000 

a(3) Unissued bonds authorized by 

adopted orders: 

 

$             -0- 

 

a(4) Outstanding debt, not evidenced by bonds: $             -0- 

(a) GROSS DEBT, being the sum of a(1), a(2), a(3) and a(4): $33,000,000 

(b) DEDUCTIONS 

b(1) Funding and refunding bonds authorized by orders 

introduced but not yet adopted: 

 

$             -0- 

b(2) Funding and refunding bonds authorized but not yet issued: $             -0- 

b(3) The amount of money held in sinking funds or otherwise for 

the payment of any part of the principal of gross debt other 

than debt incurred for water, gas, electric light or power 

purposes or sanitary sewer purposes (to the extent that the 

bonds are deductible under G.S. 159-55(b)): 

 

 

 

 

$             -0- 

b(4) Bonded debt included in gross debt and incurred, or to be 

incurred, for water, gas, electric light or power purposes: 

 

$            -0- 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

w
o

rn
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
D

eb
t-

C
am

d
en

 2
02

0 
R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

  (
27

34
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
l B

o
n

d
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

)



 

2 

b(5) Bonded debt included in gross debt and incurred, or to be 

incurred, for sanitary sewer system purposes (to the extent 

that said debt is made deductible by G.S. 159-55(b)): 

 

 

$            -0- 

b(6) Uncollected special assessments heretofore levied for local 

improvements for which any part of the gross debt (that is 

not otherwise deducted) was or is to be incurred to the extent 

that such assessments will be applied, when collected, to the 

payment of any part of the gross debt: 

 

 

 

 

$            -0- 

b(7) The amount, as estimated by the Finance Officer of special 

assessments to be levied for local improvements for which 

any part of the gross debt (that is not otherwise deducted) 

was or is to be incurred, to the extent that the special 

assessments, when collected, will be applied to the payment 

of any part of the gross debt: 

 

 

 

 

 

$            -0- 

(b) DEDUCTIONS, being the sum of b(1), b(2), b(3), b(4), b(5), 

b(6) and b(7): 

 

$            -0- 

(c) NET DEBT 

(c) NET DEBT, being the difference between the GROSS 

DEBT (a) and the DEDUCTIONS (b): 

 

$33,000,000 

(d) ASSESSED VALUE 

(d) ASSESSED VALUE of property subject to taxation by the 

County, as revealed by the County tax records and certified 

to the County by the assessor: 

 

 

$1,210,019,407 

(e) PERCENTAGE 

(e) Percentage which the NET DEBT (c) bears to the 

ASSESSED VALUE (d): 

 

2.73% 

The foregoing statement is true. 

__________________________________________ 

Finance Officer 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

w
o

rn
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
D

eb
t-

C
am

d
en

 2
02

0 
R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

  (
27

34
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
l B

o
n

d
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

)



 

3 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ) 

) ss.: 

COUNTY OF CAMDEN ) 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 6th day of July, 2020. 

[SEAL]   

Notary Public 

Printed Name:  

My Commission expires _________________. 

I, Karen M. Davis, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, 

North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a statement which 

was filed with me at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners for said County held on July 6, 

2020, after the introduction and before the public hearing on an order authorizing bonds of said 

County, and that said statement is open to public inspection in my office. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal of said County this 6th day of July, 2020. 

__________________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

[SEAL] 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

w
o

rn
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
D

eb
t-

C
am

d
en

 2
02

0 
R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

  (
27

34
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
l B

o
n

d
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

)



 

 

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF TOTAL ESTIMATED INTEREST PURSUANT TO THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOND ACT, AS AMENDED 

I, Stephanie Jackson, Finance Officer of the County of Camden, North Carolina (the 

“County”), having been designated by the Board of Commissioners for the County (the “Board”) 

to make and file with the Clerk to the Board a statement of total estimated interest pursuant to 

The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, DO HEREBY CERTIFY as follows: 

1.  On July 6, 2020, the Board introduced a bond order authorizing the issuance by the 

County of $33,000,000 School Bonds (the “Bonds”). 

2.  If the Bonds are duly authorized and issued, I have estimated that the total amount of 

interest to be be paid by the County over the expected term of the Bonds to be $18,334,067.  

Such estimate is based on a number of assumptions regarding certain future events and 

circumstances, including the following: 

(a) The Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $33,000,000. 

(b) During an initial period of interim financing, the County would pay interest only for 

approximately one (1) year at an assumed interest rate of 2.50% per annum.  Following the initial 

one-year period, the Bonds will be payable in 30 equal installments of principal and interest 

payable annually and bear interest at an assumed interest rate of 3.00% per annum.  Such interest 

rates are reasonably conservative estimates provided by the County’s financial advisor to be used 

for planning purposes.  Prevailing interest rates at the time the Bonds are sold will vary based 

upon economic conditions at the time. 

(c) The Bonds will not be redeemed prior to maturity. 

The total estimated amount of interest on the Bonds over the expected term of the Bonds 

is preliminary and for general purposes only.  The County makes no assurances that the 

assumptions upon which such estimate is based will occur, and the occurrence of certain of such 

assumption is beyond the control of the County.  Differences between the actual circumstances at 

the time the Bonds are issued and the assumptions set forth above could result in significant 

differences between the total amount of estimated interest and the total amount of actual interest 

to be paid on the Bonds if and when issued.  The validity of the Bonds is not subject to challenge 

on the grounds that the actual interest to be paid on the Bonds when issued is different than the 

total amount of estimated interest on the Bonds set forth above. 

Signed this 6th day of June, 2020. 

__________________________________________ 

Finance Officer 

5.E.c

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
T

o
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 In

te
re

st
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 (

S
ch

o
o

ls
) 

 (
27

34
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
l B

o
n

d
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

)



 

2 

*     *     *     *     *     * 

I, Karen M. Davis, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, 

North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a statement of total 

estimated interest which was filed with me at a meeting of said Board for said County held on 

July 6, 2020, after the introduction and before the public hearing on an order authorizing bonds 

of said County, and that said statement is open to public inspection in my office. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal of said County this 6th day of July, 2020. 

__________________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

[SEAL] 

5.E.c

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
T

o
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 In

te
re

st
-C

am
d

en
 2

02
0 

R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 (

S
ch

o
o

ls
) 

 (
27

34
 :

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 S

ch
o

o
l B

o
n

d
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.F 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Site Preparation 

 

Attachments: Site Preparation for New School Project (DOCX) 

 

See attached summary and recommendation.   

5.F

Packet Pg. 139



Site Preparation for New School Project 

 

Proposal 

• Boundary/Topo - $11,500 

Timmons group will perform a topographic field survey of the 60-acre site including the location 

and elevation of physical features. Locations of right of way improvements will be to the extent of 

the full width of the right of way immediately adjacent to the site. Topographic limits will be to 

either a point 25 feet beyond the property on the previously delineated wetland line. The 

downstream crossing culverts will also be located and standing water levels, if observed. 

A locate ticket will be submitted to NC811 to locate horizontal locations of existing utilities and 

those locations will be surveyed as well. Immediate Downstream Storm Pipes and structures will 

also be located with inverts and sizes. 

Deliverables to include a 24”x36” size map in both PDF and Hardcopy.  

• Wetland Delineation and Survey - $12,800 

Timmons Group will work with an environmental professional to have the 404 wetlands 

delineated and confirmed by the US Army Corps of Engineers. We will perform a field survey of 

the confirmed delineation and prepare a plat for execution by the US Army Corps of Engineers.   

• Geotechnical Investigation and Report - $8,500 

Timmons group will perform 10 borings for a preliminary Geotech to 20’ depth. The site was 

logged in late 2016 or early 2017 under and clearing and grubbing permit, therefore the 

assumption is no clearing will be required for the Geotech.  

• Architectural Concept Drawings to assist with Referendum - $16,800 

Conceptual imaging for the new high school including graphically representation, based off 

meetings with the Board of Education and/or a building committee, to be used for presentations 

and or literature for the bond referendum.  

Recommendation 

The total itemized cost for the proposed site work is $38,100.  However, based on additional 

items that may occur such as clearing, bush hogging and road stabilization an additional $12,000 

is recommended bringing the total amount to $50,000. 

 

 

5.F.a

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

it
e 

P
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

N
ew

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

je
ct

  (
27

45
 :

 S
ch

o
o

l S
it

e 
P

re
p

ar
at

io
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Donna Stewart, Visitor Center Director 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of the Tourism Development Authority that the following be approved for 

reappointment: Janet Inge and Donna Stewart: 

 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 141



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NCACC Conference Delegate 

 

Attachments: Voting delegate form 2020 (DOC) 

 

Summary: 

The NCACC 113th Annual Conference Business Session will be held by virtual platform on 

Thursday, August 6, 2020 at 11:00 AM.  Each county will be entitled to one vote on items that 

come before the membership, including the election of the NCACC Second Vice President.  In 

order to facilitate the voting process, each county is to designate one voting delegate (and also 

may assign one alternate voting delegate). 

 

Recommendation: 

Appoint a voting delegate and an alternate for the NCACC Annual Conference business session. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 142



 

 
 

 

Designation of Voting Delegate 
to NCACC Annual Conference 

  
 

 

I, ______________________________________, hereby certify that I am the duly designated voting 

delegate for ______________________________ County at the 113th Annual Conference of the North 

Carolina Association of County Commissioners to be held during the virtual* Annual Business Session 

on August 6, 2020, at 11 a.m. 

Voting Delegate Name: ______________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________ 

In the event the designated voting delegate is unable to attend, _______________________________ has 

been selected as ________________________ County’s alternate voting delegate. 

Alternate Voting Delegate Name: ______________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________ 

Article VI, Section 2 of our Constitution provides: 

 

 “On all questions, including the election of officers, each county represented shall be entitled to one 

vote, which shall be the majority expression of the delegates of that county. The vote of any county in 

good standing may be cast by any one of its county commissioners who is present at the time the vote 

is taken; provided, if no commissioner be present, such vote may be cast by another county official, 

elected or appointed, who holds elective office or an appointed position in the county whose vote is 

being cast and who is formally designated by the board of county commissioners. These provisions 

shall likewise govern district meetings of the Association. A county in good standing is defined as one 

which has paid the current year's dues.” 

 

 

Please return this form to Alisa Cobb via email by Monday, August 3, 2020 close of business: 

 

Email:  alisa.cobb@ncacc.org 

 

*Please note – due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 113th NCACC Annual Conference will be held 

virtually with voting taking place via an electronic platform. 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

o
ti

n
g

 d
el

eg
at

e 
fo

rm
 2

02
0 

 (
27

25
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

 D
el

eg
at

e)

mailto:alisa.cobb@ncacc.org


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - May 28, 2020 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_052820 (DOCX) 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 144



 

1 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  

Camden County Board of Education 

Joint Meeting 

May 28, 2020; 6:00 PM 

Camden County High School Media Center 

 

Call to Order 

A joint meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners and Camden County Board of Education was 

called to order by the respective Chairmen at 6:00 PM in the Media Center of Camden County High School.  The 

primary purpose of the meeting was to receive a presentation by MB Kahn, Inc. and discuss a possible Bond 

Referendum for the construction of a new high school.  Included on the agenda for the Board of Commissioners was 

consideration of the CARES Act Fund Disbursement Plan. 

 

Board Members Present 

Board of Commissioners: Chairman Tom White, Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, 

Randy Krainiak, and Ross Munro. 

 

Camden County Board of Education: Chairman Christian Overton, Vice Chairman Jason Banks, Board Members 

Kevin Heath, Sissy Aydlett and Chris Purcell. 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

Camden County Board of Education - A motion was offered by Kevin Heath and seconded by Sissy Aydlett to 

approve the agenda as presented.  The motion carried unanimously with five members voting aye and no member 

voting no.   

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners – A motion was offered by Vice-Chairman Clayton Riggs to approve the 

agenda as presented.  The motion carried unanimously with five members voting aye and no member voting no.   

 

Presentation on Proposed New High School 

 

Mr. Rick Ott of M.B. Kahn an update on the proposed high school construction project. 

 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
28

20
  (

27
21

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

8,
 2

02
0)



 

2 
 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
28

20
  (

27
21

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

8,
 2

02
0)



 

3 
 

 
 

 
 

Mr. Ott’s presentation also included a sample timeline of required actions that are necessary to proceed with placing 

a Bond Referendum on the November 3, 2020 election.  He noted that the final decision does not have to be made 

until the third reading.   

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
28

20
  (

27
21

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

8,
 2

02
0)



 

4 
 

County Manager Ken Bowman addressed the Boards with the following remarks: 

As the Budget Officer for Camden County, it is my responsibility to advise the leadership when financial situations 

develop that impact the community and the citizens of the County. 

 

That being said, I have been directly involved with the financing of many projects within the last few years that have 

impacted the operational budget.  This year I just completed the 2020-21 budget and it will be presented to the 

Board of Commissioners at their June 1st meeting for a public hearing and approval.  The budget this year 

increased over last year by $200k to a total of $13.5M.  The current tax rate is 75 cents, which generates 

approximately $100k per one cent of tax revenue for the County.  My recommendation this year to the Board of 

Commissioners is to fund the budget as presented without a tax increase. 

 

Over the past few months we have been very busy working with the Superintendent and MB Kahn on the prospects 

of building a new high school.  To say the least, this has been very challenging – especially working with the Local 

Government Commission, Bone Counsel, and the financial advisors for the County based on the current 

recommendation from the School Board to build a school in the amount of $49.3M.  The school has a $12.3M grant 

which can be applied toward the construction of the school which will reduce the amount to borrow to 

approximately $37M.  I’ve had multiple discussion with these folks to get their insights and guidance on how to 

proceed with financing this project.  It should be noted that the $10M that was in last year’s State Budget is most 

likely not available due to the Coronavirus impact on the state. 

 

Based on a 20-year loan with a maximum annual debt service of $2.9M, the projected tax increase to the citizens to 

finance this project is estimated at an additional 18.5 cents more, bringing the total tax bill to 93.5 cents per $100 of 

the assessed property value.  An example of this: The current tax for a $200k house is $1500 per year.  The tax rate 

for the same house would increase to $1870 per year for an increase of $370. 

 

After speaking with the Local Government Commission, we were advised, based on a county the size of Camden, the 

ability to service this debt is excessive.  Funding at this rate leaves no room for any added increases over the next 20 

years such as infrastructure, utilities, buildings, upgrades, vehicles, Sheriff’s Office, etc. because the County will 

have limited ability to pay for these items, which is not a realistic approach for future planning.  Although building 

a new high school would be the optimal choice, the proposed cost could place the County in a challenging situation 

for future years.   

 

I would recommend a committee be organized with representatives from both boards to look at options to meet the 

needs and lower the cost.  Thank you for your time and attention to this very important topic. 

 

Board of Education Members Chris Purcell and Kevin Heath spoke to the importance of looking at all the financing 

options available so as to get the tax rate increase down to as low as possible. 

 

Discussion took place between the two boards concerning the results of the feasibility study conducted by MB Kahn 

as well as how the cost of the project might be reduced. 

 

Mr. Ott reiterated that the amount to be financed does not have to be finalized until the third reading; that it can 

decrease from the amount given at the first reading, but cannot increase.  He added that it became clear during the 

feasibility study that the construction of a new school was the only option that solved all of the issues in regard to 

the space needs of the school system.  The plan includes continued usage of all of the current school facilities.   

 

Commissioner Riggs added that this idea has been on the table for a number of years and with little to no progress 

and a committee could work on trying to get the cost down before the final reading. 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
28

20
  (

27
21

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

8,
 2

02
0)



 

5 
 

Further discussion took place in regard to the variety of financing options available and the impact on the tax rate. 

 

A motion was offered by Commissioner Garry Meiggs to organize a committee with representatives from both of 

these boards to study this project promptly and diligently for the possibility of at least getting it on the 2022 ballot.   

Mr. Ott, upon request of Board of Education Chairman Christian Overton, explained that to delay the project to 2022 

will result in a potential loss of grant funds and an increase of construction costs and interest rates. 

 

Commissioner Ross Munro requested that Commissioner Meiggs table his motion in light of the fact that a final 

decision does not have to be made until the third reading.  If it is possible that a committee could get the tax rate 

increase down to 10 cents, he would be comfortable letting the voters decide in November. 

 

Commissioner Riggs suggested that a vote be taken on the current motion and then a second motion be offered to 

get to the third reading before making a final decision.   

 

Commissioner Meiggs declined to withdraw his motion. 

 

The motion carried 3-2 with Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Randy Krainiak voting aye and 

Commissioners Tom White and Ross Munro voting no. 

Commissioner Riggs inquired if a motion could be made to proceed with the three readings to get to a final decision.  

Chairman White explained that due to the fact that the vote taken was to place it on the 2022 ballot, no further action 

could be taken. 

There being no further matters on the agenda for the Board of Education, Chairman Overton called for a motion to 

adjourn.  A motion was offered by Chris Purcell and seconded by Kevin Heath to adjourn.  The motion carried 

unanimously with five members voting aye and no member voting no.    

 

Board of Commissioners 

CARES Act Fund Disbursement Plan 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the following draft plan for disbursement of the CARES Act Relief Funds: 

• Part-time program administrator - $35k 

• Part-time custodian - $15k 

• Personal Protective Equipment - $25k 

• Plexi-glass shields in common areas - $15k 

• Modifications to building ventilation systems - $20k 

• Modifications to building entrances - $10k 

• Funding for additional meetings - $20k 

• Laptops / monitors with cameras and microphones / meeting OWL - $50k 

• Small business and nonprofit relief grant program for local business impacted by COVID-19 - $50k 

• Emergency Management - $25k 

• Camden Schools (Technology) - $50k 

 

The plan is required to be submitted by June 1, 2020. All funds will be managed by a program administrator.  The 

program will be monitored on a regular basis and funds will be allocated using a request form with justification.  

Any unspent funds on December 31, 2020 will be returned. 

 

Vice-Chairman Clayton Riggs offered a motion to approve the Plans for COVID-19 Relief Funds as presented by 

the County Manager and authorize him to sign the CRF County Plan for submission to the State.  The motion carried 

unanimously with five members voting aye and no member voting no.   

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
28

20
  (

27
21

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

8,
 2

02
0)



 

6 
 

Commissioner Krainiak suggested that the amount to the small businesses in the county be reconsidered for a higher 

amount for distribution. 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Garry 

Meiggs offered a motion to adjourn.  The motion carried unanimously with five members voting aye and no member 

voting no.   

 

Chairman White adjourned the meeting at 7:20 PM. 

 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Tom White, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
28

20
  (

27
21

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
M

ay
 2

8,
 2

02
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2020 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_060120 (DOCX) 

 

7.B

Packet Pg. 151



 

1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting 

June 1, 2020; 7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on June 1, 2020 in the Historic 

Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  Due to Gov. Roy Cooper’s executive order limiting public gatherings to no 

more than 10 people to reduce the spread of COVID-19, the meeting was streamed live for the benefit of the media 

and public.  Citizens were invited to submit public comments by sending their remarks via email to the Clerk to the 

Board.  Comments submitted were to be read by the Clerk during the live meeting and entered into the Public 

Record.     

 

WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak and Ross Munro.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

The following comments were received by email due to COVID-19 and read aloud by the Clerk: 

 
Steven R. Judd, Jr. of Country Club Road - As a tax paying citizen of Camden County, I am demanding to be heard by you. Your 

failure to act in a responsible manner towards building a new school concerns me greatly. The future of this county relies on the 

quality of our school system. Without proper facilities and appropriate staff, we will undoubtedly see a decrease in ratings and 

an increase in debt.  It is irresponsible not to place this project on the ballot for the citizens to decide. Your opinion and goals do 

not represent the majority of your constituents. You and I cannot afford to let this project linger for another two years. We simply 

will not have the money, nor the room, to raise taxes to compensate for the poor decision made by Commissioner Garry Meiggs, 

Clayton Riggs, and Randy Krainiak.  My children deserve to receive the same education that your children have received in 

Camden County. Overcrowding eliminates that possibility. People move to Camden County specifically for the schools; you will 

begin to see them move out of Camden County if you and your colleagues do not take a serious approach to building a new high 

school.  Education and Public Safety are what makes this county desirable and loved by the people who live here, and want to 

live here. The priorities of this board are an embarrassment. I expect proper representation from you Mr. Krainiak. Listen to the 

people.  Please vote for the referendum on Monday, June 1st.  We are all watching. 

 
Kiera E. Clark - As a tax paying parent, I implore you to practice foresight and cease the ignorance. Spend our money on our 

school system.  Our children need a school system that puts their safety at the forefront.  Considering our current pandemic 

challenges and the fact our high school trailers do not provide sufficient space for appropriate hygiene management, you have an 

obligation to protect our future (children).  Hand sanitizer does not kill harmful pathogens alone. Good air quality and scrubbing 

hands at least 20-seconds with soap is a basic necessity to combat disease. The trailers are dated and do not meet basic human 

needs.  We need a new high school.  Our school system deserves an overhaul. You are not in need of a brand-new building in a 

time where most of your community is struggling financially due to closed businesses or hours being decreased. Parents will not 

choose to live in Camden if the schools lack strong teachers, successful sports programs and positive educational outcomes. 

This will not attract other quality educators either.  Building more and more houses and subdivisions is only lining politician 

pockets, like yours Mr. Krainiak.  Is it true your family will be financially benefiting from the land rezone next to the library?   

Quality schools with strong educators and sports programs attract families. If you are unsure of that, ask Sentara and see how 

difficult of a time they have bringing in providers with families after they research our school system. Investing in our schools 

will impact the economy and positive community growth. Taxation with no representation is what you are practicing.  I motion 

that you suspend further votes and moving forward with the administration site build until the meetings are opened back up to the 

public in-person, in addition to placing our new high school build into the 2021 budget. I also move that there be an investigation 

of possible conflict of interest into the Board of Commissioners and possible personal financial gains in the development of the 

land throughout all of Camden County. It would be good to clear the air if this is an untrue rumor.  

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

2 

 

Franklin & Linda Williams of Culpepper Road - We, Franklin and Linda Williams, feel that a great injustice was done last week 

when this board chose to rob us and all the taxpayers in this county from being able to decide on the future of the proposed new 

Camden County High School.  It should not be the decision of 3 commissioners to decide this for the entire county.  The county 

has spent time and our money into the planning of this new high school…again.  This has been going on for over 11 years and 

still NOTHING has been done to relieve the crowding in our schools.  We had 3 sons graduate from Camden High School and we 

presently have 6 grandchildren in the same system.  All of our sons reside in the county and also pay their taxes here.  We pay a 

healthy amount in taxes, yet we all support the building of this school and we are adult enough to understand that this will likely 

raise our taxes…but it is necessary. With the low interest rates and the 12.3 million in grant money this is doable now…not 2 

years from now when the grants and the low interest rates will be gone.  We ask that this board becomes the Board of 

Commissioners that will finally get this school built.  This county has waited too long and already spent too much to let it just slip 

by once again.  Please do your job in finding the best options for the school and funding and then let us…the taxpayers…do 

ours.   

 

Deanna Manns of Sleepy Hollow Rd. - Hello, my name is Deanna Manns and we live in Camden County. I have a son in Grandy 

Primary School and I'd love to see ya’ll move forward to build the new high school. Ya’ll have so many new houses popping up 

everywhere throughout the county that new schools are a MUST. They're not a want but a NEED. Please get the high school 

started because you will need to expand or make a new elementary and middle school in the very near future. Thank you. 

 

Sandra S. Hair of Culpepper Rd. – School Bond Referendum: Why wait?  1. The independent feasibility study, which cost 

$25,000, supports the need.  2. A 12.3 million free needs-based grant is available for school construction.  3. Interest rates are 

currently at record lows.  4. Rising construction costs.  I am therefore requesting you rescind your vote to place the school bond 

referendum on the 2022 ballot. There is absolutely no reason to delay for two years.  I am requesting you place the school bond 

referendum on the 2020 ballot and let the decision be made by the voters in November. 

 

Jonathan & Leslie Cropp of Summer Way - I am writing to voice my concern to the Commissioners after hearing they plan to 

postpone discussions of new school construction for 2 or more years. I see new homes being built in every direction in Camden 

County and some current students going to classes in trailers.  I have four children in Camden schools right now.  What is the 

advantage of waiting two more years?  There are many reasons to get to work fixing this problem now. 1) As I understand it, 

right now there is over $12M from a grant, which all could be used in construction of a new school at no cost to taxpayers.  2) A 

feasibility study has already been conducted outlining all Camden schools at or beyond capacity right now. 3) Interest rates 

cannot go much lower than they are right now. 4) The number of students in local schools is only going up during the next few 

years.  5) The health and safety of students should be a top priority to the Commissioners.  Having students in overcrowded 

classes and trailers is not ideal for their health or safety.  Thank you for the work you do and God Bless. 

 

Stephen & Huyla Coker - As residents of Camden County and as parents of three children (senior, sophomore and a 7th grader) 

in the Camden County School System, we urge you to rescind your decision from last week.  We request that you move forward 

with allowing the citizens of Camden to have the opportunity to vote on the bond referendum in November of 2020.  We have had 

3 children in the school system, often spread across 3 different schools in the same year.  We have firsthand experience 

regarding the space, facility and safety challenges within the existing schools.  With a current total of 32 student years we feel 

qualified to attest to the very real and urgent need for a new school building NOW and not down the road.  This process has 

already been going on long enough.  It is never pleasant to spend large amounts of money but sometimes it is 

necessary.  Sometimes avoiding expenses results in higher costs down the road.  We feel strongly that now is the time to allow the 

citizens to have an opportunity to vote on what we feel is best for our children.  Thank you for your consideration of our request 

and thank you for your service to Camden County. 

 

Christie Hamilton of Billets Bridge Rd. - As a parent of two young children, I urge you to reconsider the vote and allow the 

people to vote in moving forward with the new high school. Now more than ever it is important to ensure our children are given a 

safe learning environment. We cannot possibly think we can help them learn and feel safe AND introduce COVID-19 strategies 

when they are overcrowded in trailers. Please, change your vote and allow the process to begin.  

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

3 

 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water 

& Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

A. Monthly Report – David Credle 

 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

4 

 

 
 

Mr. Credle included the following in his report: 

 

• SCWSD has received requests from Camden Plantation and South Mills Landing Subdivisions to service 

first phases respectively.  SCWSD currently has the capacity to service the first phases of both 

subdivisions. 

• The construction of the new well included in the 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program will give 

SCWSD the ability to raise water capacity from 720,000 to 1,080,000 gallons/day. 

• Appreciation to the Board of Commissioners for the work on the CIP and “staying ahead of the curve.” 

• The water main at the Commerce Park has been chlorinated, flushed and is back online. 

 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

Chairman White reconvened the Board of Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 4.  PUBLIC HEARINGS          

 

A. Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget – Ken Bowman 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

5 

 

Motion to open the public hearing for the Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

  
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

6 

 

  
 

  
 

There were no public comments in regard to the Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget. 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

7 

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

Motion to add the Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget to New Business as Item 5.D. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

B. Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program – Ken Bowman 

 

Motion to open the public hearing for the Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program.  The entire 

document is incorporated herein as reference.   

 

  
   

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

8 

 

 
 

There were no public comments in regard to the Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program. 

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

Motion to add the Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program to New Business as Item 5.E. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

9 

 

ITEM 5.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

10 

 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

11 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

B. Resolution 2020-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions – Ken Bowman 

 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

12 

 

 
 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2020-06-01 Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissioners as 

presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

C. Boomerang Design Fee Proposal – Ken Bowman 

 

After much deliberation and consideration of the cost for the administration complex during the downturn of the 

economy due to COVID-19, staff was directed to look at phasing the project focusing on building the Library first 

and master planning the entire project for the second phase. 

 

After advertising for architectural firms and conducting interviews, Boomerang Design was selected for design of 

the new Library (Phase I).  

 

As requested, they have provided their proposal for professional services for Phase I which includes architectural 

and engineering design services for a one-story building (+/- 11,700 square ft.) consisting of a Library, a 

Community Meeting Room, a Commissioner and Committee Board Room with support spaces, and a small 

catering/warming kitchen. 

 

Their services also include design of a master plan for the site (as required by AHJ permitting) which will also 

provide the County with a road map for future building development and extension of utility services. Time is of the 

essence as they understand the facility needs to be substantially completed by September 1, 2021. 

 

Master Plan: The services include the master planning of the 7-8 acre site for the development of Phase I as well as 

conceptual design for future building development. Their services include overall conceptual design for the entire 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

13 

 

site development to ensure that services, access, connectivity to other county facilities, etc. are all addressed and 

considered for site development. 

 

 

   
 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

14 

 

 
 

Motion to approve Boomerang Design’s proposal for professional services and authorize the Chairman to 

sign. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

Commissioner Krainiak added that the Library is being built out of necessity and the construction of the remainder 

of the Administration Complex has been placed on hold due to the uncertainty of the future economy due to 

COVID-19, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

15 

 

D. Proposed FY 2020-2021 Budget 

 

    

     
 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

16 

 

    

   

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

17 

 

    

    

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

18 

 

    

    

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

19 

 

    

    

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

20 

 

    

    

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

21 

 

    

    

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

22 

 

    

    

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

23 

 

    

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

24 

 

Motion to adopt the FY 2020-2021 Budget and Fee Schedule as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

E. Proposed 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program 

 

     
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

25 

 

   
 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

26 

 

   
 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

27 

 

   
 

 

 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

28 

 

 
 

 

Motion to approve the 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

ITEM 6.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Tourism Development Authority 

 

Motion to reappoint Adam Carver to the Tourism Development Authority for an additional term. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

ITEM 7.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – April 29, 2020 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes – May 4, 2020 

C. BOC Meeting Minutes – May 13, 2020 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

29 

 

D. Budget Amendments 

   

 

E. School Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

30 

 

   
 

 

   
 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

31 

 

F. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 
 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 
 

H. Tax Collection Report 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

32 

 

I. Set Public Hearing – South Mills Landing 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

ITEM 8.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

• COVID-19 Update in Camden County – 3 lab-confirmed cases; 1 active and 2 recovered. 

• Sarah Hill with Tourism was awarded a full scholarship to Southeast Tourism Marketing College for her 

third and final year to become eligible to receive her Travel Marketing Professional credentials.   

• Appreciation to everyone for their input and efforts to develop the 2020-2021 Budget. 

• The current Census count for Camden County is 63.8%, which is above the state rate of 56.4%, currently 

ranking Camden County number 7 out of 100 counties. 

• Next Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – July 6, 2020 

• Happy 4th of July as that is our next holiday.   

 

ITEM 9.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs noted that traffic tickets are down 56% in the state of North Carolina which will in turn 

affect revenues.   

 

ITEM 10.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

 

The following was provided to the Board for information purposes: 

 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

 

ITEM 11.  OTHER MATTERS          

 

Motion to add the referendum for the School Board back on the 2020 agenda and direct the County Manager 

and Superintendent to work diligently to make sure the county meets all the checkpoints. 

RESULT: PASSED [3-2] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: White, Munro, Riggs,  

NOES: Meiggs, Krainiak 

 

ITEM 12.  ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

33 

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: White, Munro, Krainiak, Riggs, Meiggs 

 

Chairman White adjourned the meeting at 8:00 PM. 

 

Board of Equalization and Review 

 

Chairman White reconvened the Board of Equalization & Review at 8:00 PM. 

 

There being no cases for review, Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn Board of Equalization and Review. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

Chairman White adjourned the June 1, 2020 meeting of the Board of Equalization and Review at 8:01 PM. 

 

 

 

       

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
01

20
  (

27
16

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

1,
 2

02
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

7.C

Packet Pg. 185



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 224

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 226

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 228

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 230

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 231

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 236

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 238

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



7.C.a

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

27
37

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: August Ren. DMV Monthly report (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report August, 2020 Renewals Due 9/15/2020 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.D

Packet Pg. 240



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 241

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

u
g

u
st

 R
en

. D
M

V
 M

o
n

th
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

  (
27

41
 :

 D
M

V
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.E 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

7.E

Packet Pg. 242



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

27
26

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.F 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Vehicle Refunds Over $100 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  May, 2020 Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00    

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.F

Packet Pg. 244



7.F.a

Packet Pg. 245

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

  (
27

22
 :

 V
eh

ic
le

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.G 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Refunds Over $100 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  May, 2020 Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.G

Packet Pg. 246



7.G.a

Packet Pg. 247

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

  (
27

24
 :

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.H 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

7.H

Packet Pg. 248



7.H.a

Packet Pg. 249

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
27

40
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.I 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR Director 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 

 

Attachments: Home & Community Care Block Grant (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Annual HCCB Grant administered through Albemarle Commission benefiting older adults in 

Camden; provides transportation, home health services and nutrition program. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.I

Packet Pg. 250



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 251

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 252

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 253

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 254

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 255

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 256

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 257

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 258

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 259

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 260

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



7.I.a

Packet Pg. 261

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
27

44
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.J 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Surplus Property Request - Parks & Recreation 

 

Attachments: Surplus Property - Parks & Recreation (PDF) 

 

7.J

Packet Pg. 262



7.J.a

Packet Pg. 263

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 -

 P
ar

ks
 &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

  (
27

28
 :

 S
u

rp
lu

s 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 -
 P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.A 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 264



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 265

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
27

29
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 266

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
27

29
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.B 

Meeting Date:   July 06, 2020 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 5/2020 

 

Attachments: 20-05 (DOCX) 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 267



Camden County Public Library 

MAY 2020 Statistics 
Library Closed May 1-30 due to COVID 19 

 

Visitor Count 0 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 535* 

Computer/ Wireless Use 0/144 

Questions Answered 108 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Adult Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 3/28 

Days/Hours Open 0/0 

# Items in Collection 19,351 

Library Card Holders 2,570 

*Cloud Library Circulation increased 41.8% compared to 5/19 

 

Comparison by Year 

2018-2020 

  

           
 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

May-18 May-19 May-20

Circulation

2231

2658

0
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

18-May 19-May 20-May

Attendance

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 268

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
05

  (
27

39
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)



In attempting to follow the guidelines for Phase I  and Phase II beginning May 22 of Governor Cooper’s 

plan to safely reopen our state during the COVID-19 crisis: 

• We followed a “minimal staffing” model on-site to allow social distancing. 

• Two full-time staff members worked on-site Monday – Friday, 9 am – 5 pm to assist patrons 

remotely, answer phone calls, and complete in-person work responsibilities. 

• One full-time staff member worked  remotely Monday - Friday. 

• Work was logged using a shared Google Sheets file. 

• The County Librarian supervised library employees and verified timesheets. 

 

Library staff were engaged, focused, and productive during closure and embraced the opportunity to 

focus on:  

• Program planning – including our Summer Reading Program. 

• Weeding the collection. 

• Shelf reading. 

• Cleaning up cataloging records. 

• Customer database management. 

• Computer update project. 

• Professional development. 

• Deep cleaning the building. 

An LSTA (Library Services & Technology)/ NC State Library grant was awarded to the East Albemarle 

Regional Library and shared among all locations. Supplies to safely operate following the COVID-19 crisis 

may be purchased with these funds.  Camden Public Library purchased materials to install a plexiglass 

shield around the Circulation Desk. Any excess money will be expended on supplies to allow our staff to 

safely interact and instruct patrons following reopening. 

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 269

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

0-
05

  (
27

39
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	4. Public Hearings
	A. 2731 : South Mills Landing
	Printout: 2731 : South Mills Landing
	A. Agenda Summary Reset SML Public Hearing
	B. Cover Letter
	C. Staff Findings
	D. SouthMillsLanding4SheetsMasterPlan
	E. Draft Terms  Conditions with Schedules2
	F. TRCinput
	G. Proposed Development Agreement
	H. 1 MP Development Impact Statement updated 2-20-20 - Copy
	I. 1a MP TIA Exec Summary - Copy
	J. 2 MP Compatibility with Surrounding Area - Copy
	K. 3 MP CONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED POLICY GUIDANCE - Copy
	L. 5a Stormwater comments - Copy


	5. New Business
	A. 2742 : Tax Report
	Printout: 2742 : Tax Report
	a. April 2020 monthly report

	B. 2743 : Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Printout: 2743 : Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	a. Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional HMP

	C. 2727 : COVID-19 Small Business and Non-Profit Relief Grant Program
	Printout: 2727 : COVID-19 Small Business and Non-Profit Relief Grant Program
	a. Authorization to Establish the COVID19 Small Business Grant
	b. RECOVERY GRANT APPLICATION FINAL EDIT

	D. 2733 : Camden County Library Financing
	Printout: 2733 : Camden County Library Financing
	a. Resolution Calling Public Hearing-Camden 2020 IFA (Library)
	b. Reimbursement Resolution-Camden 2020 IFA (Library)

	E. 2734 : Camden County School Bond Referendum
	Printout: 2734 : Camden County School Bond Referendum
	a. Introduce Bond Order-Camden 2020 Referendum (Schools)
	b. Sworn Statement of Debt-Camden 2020 Referendum
	c. Statement of Total Estimated Interest-Camden 2020 Referendum (Schools)

	F. 2745 : School Site Preparation
	Printout: 2745 : School Site Preparation
	a. Site Preparation for New School Project


	6. Board Appointments
	A. 2730 : Tourism Development Authority
	Printout: 2730 : Tourism Development Authority

	B. 2725 : NCACC Conference Delegate
	Printout: 2725 : NCACC Conference Delegate
	a. Voting delegate form 2020


	7. Consent Agenda
	A. 2721 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 28, 2020
	Printout: 2721 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 28, 2020
	a. bocminutes_052820

	B. 2716 : BOC Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2020
	Printout: 2716 : BOC Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2020
	a. bocminutes_060120

	C. 2737 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2737 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	D. 2741 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2741 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. August Ren. DMV Monthly report

	E. 2726 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2726 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	F. 2722 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2722 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Vehicle Refunds Over $100

	G. 2724 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2724 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Refunds Over $100

	H. 2740 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 2740 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	I. 2744 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
	Printout: 2744 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
	a. Home & Community Care Block Grant

	J. 2728 : Surplus Property - Parks & Recreation
	Printout: 2728 : Surplus Property - Parks & Recreation
	a. Surplus Property - Parks & Recreation


	8. County Manager's Report
	9. Commissioners' Reports
	10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. 2729 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2729 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 2739 : Library Report
	Printout: 2739 : Library Report
	a. 20-05


	11. Other Matters
	12. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 2731 : South Mills Landing
	4.A.A · Agenda Summary Reset SML Public Hearing
	4.A.B · Cover Letter
	4.A.C · Staff Findings
	4.A.D · SouthMillsLanding4SheetsMasterPlan
	4.A.E · Draft Terms  Conditions with Schedules2
	4.A.F · TRCinput
	4.A.G · Proposed Development Agreement
	4.A.H · 1 MP Development Impact Statement updated 2-20-20 - Copy
	4.A.I · 1a MP TIA Exec Summary - Copy
	4.A.J · 2 MP Compatibility with Surrounding Area - Copy
	4.A.K · 3 MP CONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED POLICY GUIDANCE - Copy
	4.A.L · 5a Stormwater comments - Copy

	5.A · 2742 : Tax Report
	5.A.a · April 2020 monthly report

	5.B · 2743 : Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	5.B.a · Resolution Adopting the Albemarle Regional HMP

	5.C · 2727 : COVID-19 Small Business and Non-Profit Relief Grant Program
	5.C.a · Authorization to Establish the COVID19 Small Business Grant
	5.C.b · RECOVERY GRANT APPLICATION FINAL EDIT

	5.D · 2733 : Camden County Library Financing
	5.D.a · Resolution Calling Public Hearing-Camden 2020 IFA (Library)
	5.D.b · Reimbursement Resolution-Camden 2020 IFA (Library)

	5.E · 2734 : Camden County School Bond Referendum
	5.E.a · Introduce Bond Order-Camden 2020 Referendum (Schools)
	5.E.b · Sworn Statement of Debt-Camden 2020 Referendum
	5.E.c · Statement of Total Estimated Interest-Camden 2020 Referendum (Schools)

	5.F · 2745 : School Site Preparation
	5.F.a · Site Preparation for New School Project

	6.A · 2730 : Tourism Development Authority
	6.B · 2725 : NCACC Conference Delegate
	6.B.a · Voting delegate form 2020

	7.A · 2721 : BOC Meeting Minutes - May 28, 2020
	7.A.a · bocminutes_052820

	7.B · 2716 : BOC Meeting Minutes - June 1, 2020
	7.B.a · bocminutes_060120

	7.C · 2737 : School Budget Amendments
	7.C.a · School Budget Amendments

	7.D · 2741 : DMV Monthly Report
	7.D.a · August Ren. DMV Monthly report

	7.E · 2726 : Tax Collection Report
	7.E.a · Tax Collection Report

	7.F · 2722 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	7.F.a · Vehicle Refunds Over $100

	7.G · 2724 : Refunds Over $100.00
	7.G.a · Refunds Over $100

	7.H · 2740 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	7.H.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	7.I · 2744 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
	7.I.a · Home & Community Care Block Grant

	7.J · 2728 : Surplus Property - Parks & Recreation
	7.J.a · Surplus Property - Parks & Recreation

	10.A · 2729 : Register of Deeds Report
	10.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	10.B · 2739 : Library Report
	10.B.a · 20-05



